
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting, Tuesday, 18th June, 2019
   at 2.30 pm (Drawing Room)

Site Visits

2019/0338 – Earnse Bay Car Park, West Shore Road, Barrow-in-Furness
2019/0080 – 11 Sun Street, Askam-in-Furness

Depart Town Hall Courtyard at 1.00 p.m.

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  



5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 21st May, 2019.

5 - 32

7.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)  33 - 60

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Planning Applications (Booklet attached). 
 

61 - 122

(D) 9.  Receipt of Appeal Decisions - Home Farm, North Scale, Barrow-in-
Furness 
 

123 - 128

(D) 10.  Receipt of Appeal Decision - Land between Wakefield Street and 
Sandpiper Close, Askam-in-Furness 
 

129 - 132

(D) 11.  Larger Homes Extension Legislation Update 
 

133 - 134

(D) 12.  Planning Performance Figures 
 

135 - 140

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30p.m.)

Membership of Committee

Councillors C. Thomson (Chairman)
M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chair)
Assouad
Burley
D. Edwards
Gawne
Hall
Husband
McEwan
Mooney
Nott
Seward



For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday, 10th June, 2019



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 21st May, 2019
at 2.30 p.m. (Council Chamber)

PRESENT:- Councillors M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chair), Assouad, Burley, D. Edwards, 
Gawne, Hall, Husband, McEwan, Nott and Seward.

Officers Present:- Charles Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), Maureen Smith 
(Principal Planning Officer), Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer - Member 
Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer).

1 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor D. Edwards declared an other interest in Planning Application No. 
2019/0020 – Dalton Lane, Barrow-in-Furness (Minute No. 12) as his parents lived in 
Glenridding Drive and he knew a resident in attendance at the meeting.  He left the 
meeting during consideration of the application.

Councillors Gawne and McEwan declared an interest in any matter relating to 
Cumbria County Council as they were Members of that Council.

2 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Mooney and C. Thomson 
(Chair).

3 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 16th April, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

4 – Appointments on Outside Bodies, Panels, Working Groups etc.

The Committee were reminded that at the Annual Council meeting on 20th May, 
2019 the allocation of seats in respect of Forums, Panel, Working Groups etc. had 
been agreed.

In the case of Planning Committee, Members had been requested to appoint 
Members to the Planning Panel in accordance with the notional seat allocations for 
2019/20 which had been agreed as follows:-

Five Seats (3 Labour: 2 Conservative)

RESOLVED:- To agree to appoint Councillors Gawne, Hall, Husband, C. Thomson 
and M. A. Thomson to the Planning Panel for 2019/20.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



5 – Receipt of Appeal Decision: Marsh Grange Barn, Dunnerholme

The Development Services Manager (Planning and Enforcement) submitted a report 
regarding an appeal decision in respect of Marsh Grange Barn, Dunnerholme.  A 
copy of the Appeal Decision had been included in the Extra Information booklet.  He 
reported that the appeal related to a disused barn, constructed in traditional 
materials of stone walls and slate roof, previously used for agricultural purposes.  

An application for prior approval for conversion to a dwellinghouse and associated 
operational development had been submitted in June 2017 under the provisions of 
Class Q of Part 3 of Schedule 2 of The Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (GPDO).  Prior Approval 
BPAC/2017/0350 had subsequently been granted subject to conditions.

The Development Services Manager (Planning) reported that building work had 
commenced subsequent to the grant of prior approval though it included demolition 
not identified within the submitted application.  This amounted to a loss of an 
estimated 347 square metres of the barn’s stone walls (of an original 510 square 
metres).  Such work had been considered to exceed that permitted by the GPDO 
and the applicant/agent had been informed and advised to stop work.  Having sought 
advice from a Planning Consultant, the applicant had been of the opinion that the 
works which had been carried out were within the terms of the approval and 
submitted a Lawful Development Certificate to confirm that.  The application had 
been refused.

The Planning Inspector had ruled that the demolition works did not fall within the 
scope of the prior approval issued and that the permitted development right to 
convert the building was now lost.  The Inspector had commented, “The demolition 
works undertaken and building works proposed do not fall within the scope of the 
prior approval issued under Class Q of Part 3 of Schedule 2 of the GPDO. For the 
reasons given, and on the evidence now available, the Council’s refusal to grant a 
certificate of lawful use or development in respect of Marsh Grange Barn, 
Dunnerholme, Askam-in-Furness was well-founded and the appeal thus fails.”

The Committee noted that the applicant had the option of applying for express 
planning permission for a new dwelling, which would be assessed against the 
development plan and national planning policy.

RESOLVED:-  To note the information.

6 – Appeal Decision for Proposed Rear Extension at 24 Fell Croft, Dalton-in-   
Furness

The Development Services Manager (Planning) submitted a report regarding an 
appeal decision in respect of a rear first story extension at 24 Fell Croft, Dalton-in-
Furness.  A copy of the Appeal Decision had been appended to the report.  He 
reported that the property had a mixed history of recent applications.  A two storey 
rear extension had been refused in 2017 (2017/0528), a single storey 3.6m long 
addition submitted under the Larger Homes legislation (2017/0725) and a further first 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



floor addition had been refused under Delegated powers (2018/0564).  The latter 
formed the basis of the appeal.

He reported that under the Larger Homes regime, a Planning Authority cannot 
intervene in the layout or design of a proposal unless the neighbour objects within 
the 21 day window.  As no such response had been received, the Authority had to 
concede that Prior Approval for the ground floor extension was not required.

At the time of the application, the ground floor extension was under construction.  
The refused application was for a flat roofed first floor addition above that, which 
would have resulted in a structure 3.6m long and 5.6m in height.

The key issues around which the decision to refuse had been based, were design 
principles relating to the adverse impact upon the neighbours’ amenities.  The size 
and mass of the extension would have created a tunnelled enclosure between the 
two properties.  It would also have restricted sunlight to a daily amount of less than 
two hours, impacting upon the neighbours’ living room window.  Accordingly consent 
had been refused on the basis of the proposal being contrary to Saved policy B14, 
Emerging policy H16 and part 127 of the Framework.

The Inspector noted the relationship between the neighbour’s house and the 
extension currently being built under the Larger Homes legislation as being 
“uncomfortably close”.  Nevertheless, in terms of adding a first floor onto the same 
footprint the Inspector considered that increasing its height would create a high blank 
wall in close proximity to the kitchen window, forming a tunnel between the two 
houses that would be “visually oppressive and overbearing”

In terms of the second reason for refusal, the Inspector considered two aspects.  The 
Framework suggests flexibility in applying policies relevant to daylight/sunlight, and 
in the absence of evidence to show how the Authority had calculated the 
unacceptable loss of natural lighting he could not uphold that reason for refusal.  The 
Committee had been requested to note that these comments had been noted and in 
future, that would be included as evidence to back up any such reasons in 
subsequent applications.

The appeal had been dismissed on the grounds that it was contrary to local policy 
which sought to preclude rear extensions that would be overbearing or created 
excessive levels of enclosure.

RESOLVED:-  To note the information.

Town and Country Planning Acts

7 – Delegated Decisions

The Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment submitted for 
information details of planning applications in this report which he had determined 
under delegated authority (Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 
2002, confirmed by Council 24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for 
your information.  The plans recommended for approval under the Town and Country 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Planning Acts will be subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 
(April 1971) of the Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough 
Council, in addition to any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) 
beside the applicant’s name denotes those applications that were reported to the 
Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

2019/0170 Application for works subject of Tree Preservation Order 1972 No. 2:

T1243-Sycamore-Prune from street light to give 1m clearance
T1244-Not Known-Remove faulty brown stem
T1248-Elm-Fell to ground level
T1249_Stump-Grind out stump
T1251 and T1252-Sycamore-Prune branches back to wall so they no 
longer overhang clothes drying area
T1272- Sycamore - Remove epicormic growth from base of the tree
T1272-Sycamore-Crown lift over highway to give 5.2m clearance
T1253-Sycamore-Prune branches back to wall so they no longer 
overhanging clothes drying area to give 3m clearance
T1283 - Sycamore - Remove epicormic growth from base of tree at 
Vicarage Mount, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0186 Schooling Arena to be used exclusively for the exercising of horses 
owned by the applicant (re-submission of 2018/0609) at Elliscales 
Farm, Askam Road, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0191 Application for variation of Condition No. 2 of planning permission 
2008/1031 (Erection of a two storey side extension forming ground 
floor garage with 3rd and 4th bedroom over) to convert garage into a 
kitchen at 15 Lichfield Close, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0127 Single storey flat roofed rear extension forming additional living room, 
bedroom, utility and store (creating new access onto the backstreet) 
at 28 Barnard Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0211 Rear kitchen and living area extension at 4 Summit Avenue, Barrow-
in-Furness.

2019/0210 Proposed single storey rear extension at 18 Elterwater Crescent, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0223 Erection of a rear extension (retrospective) at 6 Himalaya Avenue, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0140 Single storey rear extension to form family room at 7 Muncaster Road, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0141 Internal alterations and rear single storey extension at 112 Duddon 
Road, Askam-in-Furness.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



2019/0168 Construction of new modular nursery building to replace previously 
demolished nursery at Yarlside Academy, Redoak Avenue, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2018/0817 Minor material amendment to allow a revised house type on Plot 12 
via a variation of Condition No. 2 (approved plans) for planning 
permission 2016/0126 (Erection of 13 dwellings) at Hayeswater Drive, 
Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0221 Change of use of a building from office use (Class B1(a) to a 
dwellinghouse (Class C3) AT 17 Hartington Street, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2019/0169 Erection of rear single storey extension forming kitchen at 2 Flass 
Lane, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0192 Single storey rear extension forming extending kitchen, dining and 
living room and associated alterations at 237 Ireleth Road, Askam-in-
Furness.

2019/0175 Demolish existing side garage and construct a two storey side 
extension for use as a garage/store with bedroom over at 49 Victoria 
Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0133 Application or approval of details reserved by Conditions No. 4 (Phase 
1/desk top study re: potential for ground contamination) and No. 17 
(construction method statement) of planning permission 2017/0499 
(Construction of 12 houses including landscaping and access road) at 
Former Cemetery Cottage Housing Site, Schneider Road, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2019/0134 Erection of a detached pitched roof garage to the rear of the property 
at 5 Featherstone Crescent, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0245 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 13 (Piling 
details) of planning permission 2015/0179 (Extension to Devonshire 
Dock Hall, to comprise two new buildings, link corridor, new gate 
house, security gate, alterations to site access, cycle shelters, security 
fencing and associated hard landscaping, infrastructure and related 
works at Devonshire Dock Hall (D58) North Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0215 Minor Material Amendment in relation to Conditions No. 2 (Approved 
plans), No. 3 (drainage details) and Condition No. 7 (Exterior walls) 
following grant of 2017/0704. Prior Approval of Proposed Change of 
Use of Agricultural Buildings to Dwelling houses (Use Class C3), and 
for associated operational development – for conversion of 
agricultural development – for conversion of agricultural buildings into 
two dwellings) to allow for a wet dash render finish to external walls at 
Barn, Park Farm, Park, Dalton-in-Furness.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



2019/0203 Proposed single storey rear extension forming enlarged 
living/kitchen/dining area; provision of external canopy to side 
elevation at 3 Vicarage Field, Church Hill, Lindal-in-Furness.

2019/0115 Advertisement consent to display 2 internally illuminated signs, non 
illuminated lettering and an internal vinyl sign to the front elevation at 
Alfred Barrow Health Centre, Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0125 Demolition of existing kitchen, porch, wc and store; construction of 
new single storey extension containing enlarged kitchen, utility room, 
shower room and stores at 13 Quarry Brow, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0112 Erection of first floor bedroom extension over existing garage at 20 
Holbeck Park Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0202 Change of use to a Bed and Breakfast Guest House (Use Class C1) 
(Retrospective) at 19 Crooklands Brow, Ulverston Road, Dalton-in-
Furness.

2019/0171 Conversion of hotel accommodation back to 3 dwellings including 
front and rear ground floor extensions at 52, 54 and 56 Mount 
Pleasant, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0178 Extension to existing livestock building on Land at Parkhouse Farm, 
Parkhouse Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0177 Demolition of existing single storey extension and replacement with 
new single story extension with mono pitched roof to provide dining 
room and utility extension at 236 Ireleth Road, Ireleth, Askam-in-
Furness.

2019/0157 Listed Building Consent for the provision of signage to the pharmacy 
until within the health centre including:

2 internally illuminated signs, non illuminated letting and an internal 
vinyl sign to the front elevation at Alfred Barrow Health Centre, Duke 
Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0163 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 3 
(Construction of Traffic Management Plan) of planning permission 
2018/0340 – Construction of a car park with mezzanine deck to 
provide a total of 841 spaces, vehicle access and egress to Buccleuch 
Dock Road and Michaelson Road, hard and soft landscaping, security 
fending lighting, vehicle barriers and infrastructure and ancillary works 
at Car Park at Former HIP Building, Buccleuch Dock Road, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2019/0154 Change of use from light industrial (Use Class B1/B2/B8) to a 
bakery/café (Use Class A1/A3) at Unit 45 Trinity Enterprise Centre, 
Ironworks Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



2019/0194 Erection of single storey flat roofed rear extension to form store at 15 
Shakespeare Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0225 Refurbishment of existing shop to include a single storey extension to 
increase footprint by 20m² and alterations to roof and elevations at 
Dalemount Filling Station, Ireleth Road, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness.

The following application was partially approved:-

2019/0196 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 2 
(Surface Water Drainage Details of planning permission 2018/0568 (A 
new purpose built onsite ‘Building B64’. The building will be a single 
storey pre-fabricated, modular (floor space approx. 615m²) at BAE 
Building 64, Buccleuch Dock Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

The following applications were refused:-

2019/0243 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) single storey flat roof extension forming 
open-plan kitchen/living/dining room; associated internal bedroom and 
bathroom layout alterations at 41 Bowfell Crescent, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2019/0224 Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or 
Development (CLOPUD) to enlarge existing dormer to rear of 
detached bungalow at 7 Skiddaw Gardens, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0151 Erection of a two storey side extension forming additional utility, 
extended dining room and one additional bedroom at 27 Water Garth, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Planning Manager reported on the following planning application:-

8 – Hayeswater Drive, Dalton-in-Furness

From M. T. Wood and Sons Ltd in respect of an application for a non-material 
amendment following grant of planning permission 2016/0126 (erection of 13 
dwellings) to allow the erection of a vertically boarded fence in place of the proposed 
wall and the replacement of an existing wall with a fence at Hayeswater Drive, 
Cemetery Hill, Dalton-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0227.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting.

The applicant and an objector attended the meeting and made representations to the 
Committee.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:- To agree that the non material amendment be approved subject to the 
following condition:-

1. The approved fence shall be erected in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved:

Fence Detail ref. P109 Revision A and Site Layout Plan Ref. 3296-P102 
Revision H.

Reason 

To ensure the development is only carried out as approved.

9 – Harding Rise House, Harding Rise, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr S. Solsby, Barrow Borough Council in respect of the removal of Condition 
No. 5 (Main entrance incorporated into building frontage onto Harding Rise) from 
planning application 2017/0790 (Proposed new office building to provide managed 
office space together with associated road and parking) to introduce main entrance 
into the South South West elevation at Harding Rise House, Harding Rise, Barrow-
in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0256.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that Condition No. 5 of planning decision 
2017/0790 could be removed and the following conditions be carried forward:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of the original planning permission 
2017/0790 dated 6.3.2018.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to keep the permission to the terms 
of the original consent.

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the application 
dated 6th December 2017 and the following approved plans and 
documents except where modified by conditions below:

Drawing numbers: K867-P-02, K867-P- 03 rev B, K867-P- 04, K867- P- 
05, K867-P-06, K867-P- 07, K867-P- 08, K867-P- 09, K867-P-10, K867-
P- 11, K867-P- 12.

Reason

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



To ensure the development is only carried out as approved.

Pre-commencement Conditions

3. Notwithstanding the documents approved under condition 2 above and 
in particular drawing no K867 - P-03 rev B, development shall not 
commence until details of the car park layout and landscaping including 
the number of parking spaces have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority. The development shall only proceed in 
accordance with details approved under this condition.

Reason

The submitted application does not address the policy requirements 
including saved policies BPV1, BP4 or BP23 of the Port Area Action 
Plan in relation to protected species and the need to seek improvements 
in bio-diversity and as a consequence the issues of layout may require 
amending once these matters have been addressed.

4. The landscaping scheme referred to under condition 3 above shall 
accord with the principles on landscape character under Design 
Guidelines pursuant to saved policy BP23. The scheme shall be 
submitted on a plan not greater than 1:200 scale and shall contain 
details of numbers, locations, species and sizes of plants to be used. All 
planting and subsequent maintenance shall be to current British 
Standards. The approved scheme shall have been implemented by the 
end of the first planting season following either the substantial 
completion of the development or the beneficial occupation of any part of 
the development, which ever is the sooner. Any trees or shrubs 
removed, dying being severely damaged or becoming seriously 
diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by the landowner 
with trees or shrubs of a similar size and species to those originally 
required. The landscaping scheme shall otherwise be retained for the life 
of the development.

Reason

To ensure that the development respects its coastal location, maximises 
the potential for habitat enhancement including contributing to a network 
of habitats and thereby accords with the saved policies BPSV1 and BP4.

During Building Works

5. The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out 
in accordance with principles set out in the submitted Drainage Strategy, 
ref: K34487/01/DS/RH, issue A, dated 6 December 2017, by R.G. 
Parkins & Partners LTD proposing surface water discharging into private 
surface water drain. Foul water should be discharged into the combined 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



sewers near the northern boundary. The development shall be 
completed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason

To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue 
increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding.

6. Full details of the surface water drainage system shall be submitted to 
the Planning Authority for approval prior to development being 
commenced. Any approved works shall be implemented prior to the 
development being completed and shall be maintained operational 
thereafter.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and environmental management, to 
give effect to the consultation response of the County Council as Lead 
Local Flood Authority, to support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, 
LD8.

7. Clear arrangements must be in place for ongoing maintenance of the 
drainage system over the lifetime of the development. The drainage 
system must be designed for ease of maintenance. In this respect 
further details shall be submitted to the Planning Authority for approval 
before work commences on site. No work shall be commenced until a 
full specification has been approved.

Reason

To ensure flood risk is not increased within the site or elsewhere and to 
give effect to the consultation response of the County Council as Lead 
Local Flood Authority.

8. Prior to any beneficial use of the car park referred to under conditions 2 
and 3 above, oil separators shall have been fitted into the surface water 
drainage scheme in accordance with details which have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The oil separators 
shall be maintained and retained for the life of the development.

Reason

To give effect to the recommendations within paragraph 3.6 of the 
Drainage Strategy, ref: K34487/01/DS/RH, issue A, dated 6 December 
2017, by R.G. Parkins & Partners LTD.

9. Prior to the use of any soils in on site landscaping and which have been 
excavated from the site they shall have first been tested for asbestos 
accordance methodology submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. The analysis shall then be carried out as per the 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



agreed methodology with verification of its completion submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

Reason

The proposed layout plan refers to existing top soil being excavated and 
re used in landscaping areas. However the Contamination Report ref 
GC20776/04, section 5.2.4 confirms that no asbestos testing has been 
carried out. This is advised at section 5.3.1 of the report.

10. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 
contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority prior to 
the soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the 
sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be 
carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its 
completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with 
Saved policy 056 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006 and policy C4 in 
the Local Plan pre submission draft.

Continuing Limitation

11. Notwithstanding any provision contained within either the Town and 
Country (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) or contained within the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
2015 (as amended) or any Order revoking and re-enacting those Orders 
within or without modifications, there shall be no change from the 
permitted uses of B1(a) and B1(b) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) to any uses falling within Use 
Class A2 or Use Class C3 of the referred to Order.

Reason

The limitation on uses is to give effect to the requirements of saved 
policy BP23.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



10 – Harding Rise House, Harding Rise, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr S. Solsby, Barrow Borough Council in respect of approval of details 
reserved by Condition(s) No. 3 (car park layout and landscaping details), No. 4 
(landscaping scheme and planting schedule), No. 7 (surface water drainage) and 
No. 9 (installation of oil separators) for planning application No. 2017/0790 -  
Proposed new office building to provide managed office space together with 
associated access road and parking at Harding Rise House, Harding Rise, Barrow-
in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0257.

The results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that satisfactory details in relation to the 
conditions had been provided and the conditions could be partially discharged since 
on-going monitoring was required to ensure that the development proceeded on the 
approved basis.

Schedule of Approved Documents

Conditions 3 and 4:

Plant Schedule reference IT(18)090_SCH001-T1 prepared by Iteriad.

Technical Package Issue for landscaping Reference IT(18)090 dated 04.02.2019 
prepared by Iteriad.

Wider Site Planting Plan Drawing No. IT(18)090_(0-)L001 Revision T1 prepared by 
Iteriad.

Central Area Detailed Planting Plan Drawing No. IT(18)090_(0-)L002 Revision T1 
prepared by Iteriad.

Typical Planting Details Drawing No. IT(18)090_(0-)L003 Revision T1 prepared by 
Iteriad.

Condition 7:

Drainage Layout Drawing No. K34487/A1/03 Revision B prepared by RG Parkins.

Surface Water Schedules and Longitudinal Sections Drawing No. K34487/A1/04 
Revision B prepared by RG Parkins.

General Drainage Details Drawing No. K34487/A1/05 Revision B prepared by RG 
Parkins.

Condition 9:

General Drainage Details Drawing No. K34487/A1/05 Revision B prepared by RG 
Parkins.

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



11 – Sutherland Court, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr C. Dodds, Gleeson Regeneration Ltd in respect of an application for a 
Minor Material Amendment (by variation of Condition No. 2) following the grant of 
planning permission 2018/0507 to omit substation and amend layout resulting in the 
provision of 1 No. additional dwelling (59 in total) and substitution of house types on 
Plot 53 from a 3 bed detached (Kilkenny) to a 3 bed semi (Tyrone) and a 2 bed semi 
(Cork) and provision of detached garage on Plot 11 (2018/0507: Erection of 58 
residential dwellings, consisting of 2, 3 and 4 bedroomed properties with associated 
works) at Sutherland Court, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 
2019/0261.

The results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that:-

(A) The unilateral undertaking be updated to take account of the amended plans 
and application reference to secure:-

(i) The maintenance of the public open space and storm water storage 
tank; and

(ii) A contribution of £7200 to Cycle Route ID 1 [Barrow Transportation 
Study 2016] then:

(B) Planning Consent be granted, subject to the amendment of conditions 
attached to the previous planning consent set out below:-

1. The development shall be begun not later than three years from the date 
of the original permission granted under ref. 2018/0507 dated 9/11/2018.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application reference 2018/0507 approved on 
09/11/2018 as amended by this application for a minor material 
amendment in relation to the omission of the sub-station and resultant 
amendments to the layout resulting in one additional dwelling and the 
hereby approved plans and documents defined by this permission as 
listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent:

Planning Layout dwg ref 1071/2D (amended plan received on 22.3.19)
House types 201/1F, 212/1, 301/1G, 304/1E, 307/1B, 309/1E, 314/1, 
405/1E
Aggregate Drive Detail dwg ref SD172 rev G

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



Garage details dwg ref SD703 rev B
Garage details dwg ref SD700 rev A
Boundary details dwg ref SD103 rev B
Boundary treatments dwg ref SD100 rev D
Drainage Assessment prepared by D. Wright dated July 2018
Ground Gas Addendum letter ref C7620/7127/APC/APC, dated 1st 
October 2018
Strategy for Remedial Works ref C7620A dated 14th August 2018
Section 38 Plan dwg ref D800 rev A
Refuse vehicle tracking plan dwg ref D902
Private drive tracking dwg ref D903
Lantern layout Urbis Schreder
Outdoor Lighting Report Urbis Schreder
Kerbs and surfacing dwg ref D500 Rev A
Proposed levels D100 rev A
Construction Management Plan including dwg ref. Con-01

Reason

In order to link the permission to the submitted application.

3. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping as shown on drawing ref 1071/2D (amended plan received 
on 22.3.19) shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons 
following beneficial occupation of any part of the development, or in 
accordance with the phasing of the scheme as agreed in writing with the 
Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years 
from the completion of the development die, are removed, or become 
seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced by the landowner in 
the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless 
the Planning Authority gives prior written consent to any variation.

Reason

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and to secure the 
landscaping element of the proposed bio diversity enhancements.

During Building Works

4. The drainage for the development hereby approved shall be carried out 
in accordance with the principles set out in the submitted Drainage 
Assessment dated July 2018, and which limits the discharge of surface 
water into the surface water sewer at a maximum flow rate of 6.5 l/s for 
any storm event. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details.

Reason

To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution. To ensure the surface water 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



system continues to function as designed and that flood risk is not 
increased within the site or elsewhere. To give effect to the consultation 
response dated 13/08/2018 from United Utilities.

5. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 
contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 
submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority prior to the soils 
being imported onto site. The methodology should include the sampling 
frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the analytical results 
will be assessed (as determined by the risk assessment) and source 
material information. The analysis shall then be carried out as per the 
agreed methodology with verification of its completion submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land, and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with 
Saved policy 056 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006 and policy C4 in 
the Local Plan pre submission draft.

6. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be 
reported immediately to the Planning Authority. Development on the part 
of the site that is affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall 
be carried out and the results submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to occupation 
of that part of the development.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land, and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with 
Saved policy 056 of the Local Plan Review 1996-2006 and policy C4 in 
the pre submission draft.

7. That in relation to plots 5 to 10, (inclusive) 13 & 14 ground gas protection 
measures shall have been integrated into the foundation/floor 
construction in full compliance with Ciria C665 Table 8.6 (Reinforced 
concrete floor slab (suspended, non suspended or raft) with at least 
1200g DPM and underfloor venting, all joints and penetrations sealed) 
and an independently prepared verification report by an appropriately 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



qualified professional shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the planning authority to that effect.

Reason

To give effect to the recommendations of Ground Gas Addendum letter 
ref C7620/7127/APC/APC dated 1st October 2018, to give effect to the 
consultation responses dated 9/10/2018 & 02/11/2018 from Public 
Protection (Barrow Borough Council),and in the interests of public safety.

Before Occupation

8. Prior to any occupation of the development a sustainable drainage 
management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development 
shall be submitted to the local planning authority and agreed in writing. 
The sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan shall 
include as a minimum:

a. Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or 
statutory undertaker, or, management and maintenance by a 
resident’s management company; and

b. Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all 
elements of the sustainable drainage system to secure the 
operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its 
lifetime.

The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and 
managed in accordance with the approved plan.

Reason

To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the 
sustainable drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution during the lifetime of the development. To give effect to the 
consultation response dated 13/08/2018 from United Utilities.

9. The carriageway, footways and footpath links including street lighting 
shall be completed in accordance with the details approved under 
condition 2 above prior to the occupation or substantial completion of the 
29th dwelling.

Reason

To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of 
highway safety. To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, 
LD8. To accord with saved policy E2. To give effect to the consultation 
response dated 10/08/2018 from Cumbria County Council as highway 
authority.

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



10. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the vehicular 
access, parking and turning requirements to serve that particular 
dwelling have been constructed in accordance with the approved plan 
and has been brought into use. The vehicular access turning provisions 
shall be retained and capable of use at all times thereafter and shall not 
be removed or altered without the prior consent of the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason

To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the 
development is brought into use.

11. The site shall be remediated in accordance with the Strategy for 
Remedial Works ref C7620A and no dwelling shall be occupied until a 
Verification Report for that plot has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority.

Reason

To give effect to the Strategy for Remedial works ref C7620A. To give 
effect to the consultation response from Public Protection dated 
17/09/2018. To secure the adequate remediation of the site.

12. No dwellings shall be occupied until the estate road including footways 
to serve such dwellings has been constructed in all respects to base 
course level and street lighting where it is to form part of the estate road 
has been provided and brought into full operational use.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety and to support Local Transport Plan 
Policies: LD5, LD7, LD8.

Operational Conditions

13. All driveways and private roads shall be of permeable surfacing.

Reason

To ensure that permeable areas are increased on the site and that runoff 
rates are decreased.

14. All vehicle parking spaces and the accesses thereto must be reserved 
for the parking of private motor vehicles and no permanent development, 
whether permitted by the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-
enacting that Order with or without modifications) or not, shall be carried 
out on that area of land in such position as to preclude vehicular access 
to the development hereby permitted.

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and 
retained for the use associated with the development hereby permitted.

12 – Dalton Lane, Barrow-in-Furness

From Oakmere Homes in respect of an application for approval of reserved matters 
of access, appearance, landscaping and layout following outline approval 2018/0798 
(Outline planning application for approximately 142 dwellings with associated open 
space and landscaping, with all matters reserved) at Dalton Lane, Barrow-in-Furness 
as shown on plan number 2019/0020.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

Two objectors and the agent attended the meeting and made representations to the 
Committee.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that Reserved Matters approval of access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale be granted, subject to the following 
conditions:-

1. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 7th March 2019 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent:-

Location Plan 15-076-100 Rev C
Site Layout Plans 17-109-PL01 Rev H & 17-109-PL02 Rev B
Borrowdale house type - 024-BOR-AG-P01 & 024-BOR-AG-P02
Ennerdale house type - 024-ENN-P01 & 024-ENN-P02
Fairfield house type - 024-FAIR-P01 & 024-FAIR-P02
Glenriding house type - 024-GLN-P01 & 024-GLN-P02
Gowan house type - 024-GOW-P01 & 024-GOW-P02
Grasmere house type - 024-GRA-P01 & 024-GRA-P02
Hawkshead house type - 024-HWK-P01 & 024-HWK-P02
Keswick house type - 024-KES-P01 & 024-KES-P02
Kirkstone house type - 024-KIRK-P01 & 024-KIRK-P02
Rusland house type - 024-RUS-P01 & 024-RUS-P02
Thirlmere house type - 024-THIRL-P01 & 024-THIRL-P02
Ullswater house type - 024-ULLS-P01 & 024-ULLS-P02
Wasdale house type - 024-WAS-P01 & 024-WAS-P02
Windermere house type - 024-WIN-P01 & 024-WIN-P02
Garage floorplans and elevations DG/ELV01/AS
Street scene elevations 024-SS-01 Rev A
Materials Plan 024-MF-01 Rev A
Detailed landscape proposals (1 of 11) 1575-02 Rev A

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



Detailed landscape proposals (2 of 11) 1575-03 Rev A
Detailed landscape proposals (3 of 11) 1575-04 Rev A
Detailed landscape proposals (4 of 11) 1575-05 Rev A
Detailed landscape proposals (5 of 11) 1575-06 Rev A
Detailed landscape proposals (6 of 11) 1575-07 Rev A
Detailed landscape proposals (7 of 11) 1575-08 Rev A
Detailed landscape proposals (8 of 11) 1575-09 Rev A
Detailed landscape proposals (9 of 11) 1575-10 Rev C
Detailed landscape proposals (10 of 11) 1575-11 Rev C
Detailed landscape proposals (11 of 11) 1575-12 Rev C
Landscape Masterplan 1575-13 Rev C
Landscape phasing plan 1575-14 Rev B
Hedgerow removal and mitigation plan 1575-15 Rev A
Surface treatments 17-109-ST01 Rev C
Boundary treatments 17-109-BT01 Rev E
Refuse plan 17-109-RP01 Rev E
Bat and bird box provision and phasing plan AWG/2704 Rev A
Topographical Survey Sheet 1 14J027
Topographical Survey Sheet 2 14J027
Topographical Survey Sheet 3 14J027
Topographical Survey Sheet 4 14J027
Proposed S38 Street Lighting Design 1 of 3 AP0524-315-APT-HLG-
0000-DR-EO Rev A
Proposed S38 Street Lighting Design 2 of 3 AP0524-315-APT-HLG-
0000-DR-EO Rev A
Proposed S38 Street Lighting Design 3 of 3 AP0524-315-APT-HLG-
0000-DR-EO Rev A
Proposed Road Layout 19019_PL01_01.1 Rev A
Proposed Road Levels 19019_PL01_01.2 Rev B
Carriageway Longitudinal Section 1 (Road 1) 19019_PL01_01.3.1
Carriageway Longitudinal Section 2 (Roads 2 and 3) 
19019_PL01_01.3.2
Carriageway Longitudinal Section 3 (Roads 4 and 
4A)19019_PL01_01.3.3
Carriageway Longitudinal Section 4 (Roads 5 and 6) 
19019_PL01_01.3.4
Carriageway Longitudinal Section 5 (Roads 7 and 8) 
19019_PL01_01.3.5
Private Driveway Longitudinal Sections (1) 19019_PL01_01.4.1
Private Driveway Longitudinal Sections (2) 19019_PL01_01.4.2
Typical Construction Details (1) - Adoptable Highways 
19019_PL01_01.5.1
Typical Construction Details (2) - Adoptable Highways 
19019_PL01_01.5.2

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Typical Construction Details (3) 19019_PL01_01.5.3
Adoption Plan 19019_PL01_01.6 Rev A
External Works Layout 19019_PL01_01.7 Rev B
Entrance Right Turn - Road Layout 19019_PL01_02.1.1 Rev A
Entrance Right Turn - Road Levels 19019_PL01_02.2.1 Rev A
Entrance Right Turn - Longitudinal Sections 19019_PL01_02.3.1
Entrance Right Turn - Road Markings and Signage 19019_PL01_02.4.1 
Rev A
Entrance Right Turn - Land Dedication Plan 19019_PL01_02.5.1 Rev A
Entrance Right Turn - Drainage Layout 19019_PL01_02.6.1 Rev A
Pond 1 Layout 19019_PL01_05.1.1 Rev B
Pond 1 Sections 19019_PL01_05.1.2
Pond 2 Layout 19019_PL01_05.2.1 Rev C
Pond 2 Sections 19019_PL01_05.2.2 Rev A
Pond 3 Layout 19019_PL01_05.3.1 Rev C
Pond 3 Sections 19019_PL01_05.3.2 Rev A
Typical Section through all ponds and pond details 19019_PL01_05.4 
Rev A

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

2. The garages and accesses thereto shall be reserved for the parking of 
private motor vehicles and no permanent development, whether 
permitted by the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) or any Order 
revoking and re enacting that Order with or without modifications or not, 
shall be carried out on that area of land in such a position as to preclude 
vehicular access to the development hereby permitted.  

Reason

To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and 
retained for the dwellings hereby permitted.

13 – London Road, Lindal-in-Furness

From Chandlers Country Homes in respect of outline permission for the erection of 
35 dwellings and associated car parking, landscaping and highways infrastructure 
with all matters reserved except access at London Road, Lindal-in-Furness as 
shown on plan number 2018/0375.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting.

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Two objectors and the agent attended the meeting and made representations to the 
Committee.

RESOLVED:- To agree that:-

(A) Upon completion of an Obligation or a suitably worded Unilateral Undertaking, 
the broad principles of which are to secure:-

(i) the delivery of affordable housing of a minimum of 10% in accordance 
with the NPPF para 64 including annex 2;

(ii) a financial contribution of £6500 to fund the provision of a Traffic 
Regulation Order to control on street parking; and

(iii) a financial contribution of £5560 to contribute to the Greystone 
lane/Station road cycle route; then

(B) Outline planning permission be granted, subject to the Standard Outline 
Duration Limit and the following conditions:-

1. No dwelling on the development shall be beneficially occupied until the 
access for the proposed development, as shown on Drawing ref. 
Proposed Highways Layout 3.9.18 has been constructed in accordance 
with the details that have been agreed beforehand in writing by the 
Planning Authority.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety, and in order to support Local 
Transport Plan Policies, LD7, LD8.

2. No development shall commence within the site until the applicant has 
secured an implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This written scheme will include the following components:

(a) An archaeological evaluation;
(b) A recording programme of the archaeological assets impacted 

upon by the permitted development, the scope of which will be 
dependent upon the results of the evaluation;

(c) Where significant archaeological assets are revealed by the 
programme of archaeological work, a post-excavation assessment 
and analysis, preparation of a site archive ready for deposition at a 
store approved by the Planning Authority, completion of an archive 
report, and submission of the results for publication in a suitable 
journal.

Reason

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



To afford reasonable opportunity for an examination to be made to 
determine the existence of any remains of archaeological interest within 
the site and for the preservation, examination or recording of such 
remains.

3. No infiltration systems shall be constructed within 20m of Network Rail 
Property.

Reason

So as to not influence the stability of the railway cutting or affect the 
safety, operation or integrity of the existing operational railway.

4. All surface and foul waters must drain away from the railway via a closed 
sealed pipe system, written details of which shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority prior to installation. The 
system shall be installed as approved and thereafter permanently 
retained in an operational condition unless the Planning Authority gives 
prior written approval to any variation.

Reason

So as to ensure that drainage from the development does not influence 
the stability of the railway cutting or affect the safety, operation or 
integrity of the existing operational railway.

5. No works shall be undertaken within 10m of the Network Rail boundary, 
until the developer has provided the Planning Authority with written 
details and agreement by, or on behalf of, Network Rail, of a Risk 
Assessment and Method Statement (RAMS).

Reason

So as to not influence the stability of the railway cutting or affect the 
safety, operation or integrity of the existing operational railway.

6. No drainage from the proposed development shall run off into the trunk 
road drainage system, nor shall any such new development adversely 
affect any trunk road drainage.

Reason

In order to protect the integrity of the Highways England asset by 
ensuring that any new development adjacent to the SRN does not 
negatively impact upon the asset.

7. Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme outlining how 
Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems, including 
the phasing of the scheme, shall be submitted to and approved in writing 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



by the Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details.

Reason

To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution.

8. Prior to the commencement of any development, a surface water 
drainage scheme and means of disposal, based on sustainable drainage 
principles with a feasibility assessment of the whole range of SUDs 
components as per the CDDG Appendix 6 and with evidence of an 
assessment of the site conditions (inclusive of a programme of phasing 
of installation, and also how the scheme shall be managed and 
maintained after completion), shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority. The proposed scheme should meet the 
requirements of Sustainable drainage systems: non-statutory technical 
standards (March 2015) or any subsequent document replacing or re-
enacting this advice.

The surface water drainage scheme must be restricted to existing runoff 
rates and unless otherwise agreed beforehand in writing by the Planning 
Authority, no surface water shall be discharged to the public sewerage 
system either directly or indirectly. If the scheme intends to discharge 
surface water to a public sewer, evidence that this proposal is 
acceptable to the asset owners must be provided; The surface water 
strategy discharge should aim to discharge as high up the NPPF 
hierarchy of drainage options as possible, with all options explored and 
evidence provided for the proposed solution.

(a) Into the ground (infiltration);
(b) To a surface water body;
(c) To a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage 

system;
(d) To a combined sewer.

The developer shall, as part of the submission, provide a surface water 
drainage management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 
development which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any 
public authority or statutory undertaker and any other arrangements to 
secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. The 
development shall be completed, and thereafter maintained and 
managed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason

To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to 
manage the risk of flooding and pollution. This condition is imposed in 
light of policies within the NPPF and NPPG.

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



9. The carriageways, foot-ways and footpaths shall be designed, drained 
and lit to a standard suitable for adoption by the Highway Authority. In 
this respect further written details, including longitudinal and cross 
sections, highway drainage and lighting specifications, together with a 
programme of phasing for future management and maintenance, shall 
be submitted to the Planning Authority for approval. The highways 
management and maintenance plan shall include as a minimum:

(a) The arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or 
statutory undertaker, or management and maintenance by a 
Residents Management Company;

(b) Arrangements concerning appropriate funding mechanisms for its 
ongoing maintenance of all elements of the highways, foot-ways, 
and footpaths, which will include elements such as ongoing 
inspections relating to performance and asset condition 
assessments, operation costs, regular maintenance, remedial 
works and irregular maintenance however caused, to secure the 
operation of the highways, footways and footpaths throughout the 
lifetime of the development.

No development work pertaining to highways and associated 
infrastructure shall be commenced on site until a full specification, 
including a Road Safety Audit, has been approved in writing.

The works shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details 
and the scheme of phasing as agreed with the Planning Authority. These 
details shall be in accordance with the standards laid down in the current 
Cumbria Residential Design Guide.

Reason

To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of 
highway safety, and to support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD5, LD7, 
LD8.

10. The construction of dwellings shall not commence until visibility splays 
providing clear visibility of 28 metres to the north and 33m to the south 
measured 2.4 metres down the centre of the access road and the 
nearside channel line of the major road have been provided at the 
junction of the access road with the County highway. Notwithstanding 
the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any legislation revoking and re-
enacting that Order) relating to permitted development, no structure, 
vehicle or object of any kind shall be erected, parked or places and no 
trees, bushes or other plants shall be planted or be permitted to be 
grown within the visibility splay which obstruct the visibility splays. The 
visibility splays shall be constructed before general development of the 
site commences so that construction traffic is safeguarded.

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



Reason

In the interests of highway safety, and in order to support Local 
Transport Plan Polices, LD7, LD8.

11. No dwelling shall be occupied until the vehicular parking, access and 
turning requirements to serve that dwelling have been constructed in 
accordance with the approved plan, including any approved phasing, 
and has been brought into use. The vehicular access turning provisions 
shall be retained and capable of use at all times thereafter and shall not 
be removed or altered without the prior consent of the Planning 
Authority.

Reason

To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the 
development is brought into use. To support Local Transport Plan 
Policies: LD5, LD7, LD8.

12. Development shall not be begun until a Construction Phase 
Management Plan (CMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Planning Authority. The CMP shall include details of:

 Pre-construction road conditions established by a detailed survey 
for accommodation

 works within the highways boundary conducted with a Highway 
Authority representative; with all post development repairs carried 
out to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority at the applicant’s 
expense;

 Details of proposed crossings of the highway verge;
 Retained areas for vehicle parking, manoeuvring, loading and 

unloading for their specific purpose during the development which 
allows vehicles visiting the site to enter and leave the highway in a 
forward gear;

 Cleaning of site entrances and the adjacent public highway;
Details of proposed wheel washing facilities;

 The sheeting of all HGVs taking spoil to/from the site to prevent 
spillage or deposit of any materials on the highway;

 Construction vehicle routing;
 The management of junctions to and crossings of the public 

highway and other public rights of way/footway;
 Surface water management details.
 Days/hours of work including deliveries.

Reason

In the interests of residential amenities, pedestrian safety and the safety 
of users of adjacent highways including the A590 Trunk Road.

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



13. Prior to the commencement of development a landscaping strategy 
which provides a net gain in bio-diversity shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority

Reason

To ensure compliance with the Borough of Barrow in Furness 
Biodiversity and Development SPD.

14. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out by the developer in the first planting and 
seeding seasons following beneficial occupation of any part of the 
development, or in accordance with the phasing of the scheme as 
agreed in writing with the Planning Authority. Any trees or plants which 
within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, 
are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be 
replaced by the landowner in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written 
consent to any variation.

Reason

In the interests of the long-term biodiversity and visual amenities of the 
area.

15. No part of the development shall be occupied until a Landscape 
Management Plan, including the long term design objectives, 
management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for not less 
than 5 years following implementation, for all areas of landscaping other 
than those within the curtilages of individual dwellings, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and the 
design, management objectives and maintenance of the landscaped 
areas shall thereafter be in accordance with the approved Landscape 
Management Plan.

Reason

In the interests of the long term visual amenities of the area and to 
support wider opportunities for biodiversity within the locality.

16. The roof coverings of all dwellings and outbuildings shall be of natural 
slate, details of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Planning Authority. The development shall then be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and thereafter retained.

Reason

To ensure the development respects its setting and reflects the local 
character including the conservation area.

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



17. The layout submitted as part of any Reserved Matters application shall 
incorporate an area of open space, together with a programme for its 
future management and maintenance, which shall be constructed and 
made available for use no later than the occupation of 50% of the 
dwellings approved, and in accordance with a scheme submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority. That area shall not 
thereafter be used for any purpose other than as open space unless the 
Planning Authority gives prior express consent for any variation.

Reason

To ensure a minimum level of informal play provision for the 
development in accordance with Saved policy and emerging policies

18. All garages and parking spaces shall be kept clear of any development, 
whether permitted or not by the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or 
re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) or obstructions and 
shall not be used for any other purpose, unless the Planning Authority 
gives prior written consent for any variation. All spaces shall accord with 
the latest version of the Cumbria Design Guide.

Reason

In the interests of ensuring the provision of a suitable level of off-street 
parking for the development.

19. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 
contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 
submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority prior to the soils 
being imported onto site. The methodology should include the sampling 
frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the analytical results 
will be assessed (as determined by the risk assessment) and source 
material information. The analysis shall then be carried out as per the 
agreed methodology with verification of its completion submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

Reason

To ensure that no contamination is accidentally brought onto the site via 
imported material.

20. Any application for reserved matters shall include mitigation parking for 
existing residents and the public house which shall include details of 
access, layout, surfacing and drainage together with details for how the 
facility will be managed, and the mitigation parking shall be provided and 
retained for the benefit of the existing residents and the public house for 
the life time of the development hereby approved.

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To give effect to the Design and Access Statement (paragraphs 1.06 – 
1.08) and to ensure that the impacts re on-street of the new access and 
Traffic Regulation Order are adequately mitigated.

14 – Field at Nook Lane/Saves Lane, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness

From Mrs L. Foxon in respect of the change of use of pasture land to outdoor all 
weather arena on Field at Nook Lane/Saves Lane, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness as 
shown on plan number 2019/0188.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be refused for the 
following reason:-

The proposed development would have a significant adverse visual landscape 
impact and would therefore significantly harm the scenic beauty associated 
with the open countryside location. It is therefore considered to be contrary to 
saved Local Plan policies D21 and G15; emerging Local Plan policies DS5, 
HC12 and N1, and the National Planning Policy Framework.

The meeting closed at 3.30 p.m.

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

Assistant Director of Regeneration and Built Environment 

18/06/2019

02/05/2019

04/06/2019

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0290

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
30/05/2019

Location:
1 Church Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8BA

Proposal:
Approval of details reserved by condition no. 3 of
planning permission B21/2018/0171 (Replacement
of 7 No steel framed casement windows (double
glazed)with timber framed casement windows
(double glazed) with a painted finish) - Full
architectural details of the replacement windows.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B22/2019/0284

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
Adshell 1902 0017, outside 117 Duke Street
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Upgrade of existing double sided advertising paper
panels with double sided internally illuminated
digital panels.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0233

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
09/05/2019

Location:
6 Clevelands Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA13 0AE

Proposal:
Erection of a two storey side and wrap around part
rear extension together with single storey rear
extension to form enlarged kitchen and lounge with
bedroom over.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2019/0274

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
24/05/2019

Location:
Michaelson Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Notice of intention (works to trees within
conservation area) to remove minor branches from
trunk/crown raise to a height of 2m on three maple
trees

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B23/2019/0123

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/05/2019

Location:
127 131 Duke Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Listed Building consent to re-glaze existing ground
floor frames with clear glazing,create new opening
in internal masonry wall and infill existing
opening,removal of studwork walling and
introduction of new studwork walling to create
modified office space, provision of new
plasterboard ceiling below existing and provision of
section of frosted glazing and extract fan to rear
elevation.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B13/2019/0114

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
09/05/2019

Location:
Land adjacent to 107 Beach Street Askam-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of two, 3 bedroom semi-detached dormer
bungalows

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0207

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
09/05/2019

Location:
31 Rampside Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 0HN

Proposal:
Erection of  sunroom and raised patio to rear
elevation of property

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B22/2019/0249

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
13/05/2019

Location:
3 Holker Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 5RQ

Proposal:
Consent to display 3 No. externally illuminated
fascia signs(1 to each of the  Holker Street, Milton
Street and Dryden Street elevations) and 1 No
externally illuminated sign on existing totum.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0248

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
1 Marton Close Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8XL

Proposal:
Two storey side extension forming extended living
room and cloak room to ground floor with extended
bedrooms to first floor

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0217

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
02/05/2019

Location:
35 Glenridding Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4PE

Proposal:
Replacement detached garage and retaining
boundary wall, widened driveway and highway
access.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0235

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/05/2019

Location:
7 Portland Crescent Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4EU

Proposal:
Remove existing concrete sectional
garage/shed/upvc lean to porch and erection of a
lounge/diner extension to the rear of the property.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B28/2019/0272

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
Former Lonsdale Hospital, School Street, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 7 (Details of design of wall to
Nursing Home boundary) of planning permission
2017/0743 (Application for a Minor Material
Amendment following the grant of planning
permission 2013/0138 to reduce the width of the
site, reduce number of houses from 41 to 37,
change house types on plots 13-22 inc and 27-37
inc, minor re-positioning of plots and boundaries
and minor alterations to road and parking layout.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B26/2019/0161

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
09/05/2019

Location:
Askam Windcluster Far Old Park Farm Broughton
Road Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for an
Existing Use or Development (CLEUD) for an
existing operation of 7 wind turbines,
meteorological mast, crane pads, site tracks,
substation and associated electrical infrastructure
(in relation to previous planning application
1995/0172)

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B22/2019/0281

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
Adshell 1902 0078 (outside Coronation Gardens)
Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Upgrade of existing double sided advertising paper
panels with double sided internally illuminated
digital panels.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B20/2019/0209

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
14/05/2019

Location:
Cafe Sandy Gap Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Re-modelling of existing building involving revised
fenestration pattern, addition of cladding and a 9.6
m2 extension to dining area.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B22/2019/0282

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
Adshell 1902 0054 outside Craven House
Michaelson Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Upgrade of existing double sided advertising paper
panels with double sided internally illuminated
digital panels.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B22/2019/0283

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
Advertising Right Adshell 1902 0053 (outside
Waterview Appartments) Michaelson Road
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Upgrade of existing double sided advertising paper
panels with double sided internally illuminated
digital panels.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B22/2019/0285

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
Advertising Right Adshell 1902 0015 (Outside
Abbey Appartments) Abbey Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Upgrade of existing double sided advertising paper
panels with double sided internally illuminated
digital panels.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B22/2019/0286

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
Adshell 1902 0005 (Outside Panda Garden) Duke
Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Upgrade of existing double sided advertising paper
panels with double sided internally illuminated
digital panels.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B22/2019/0287

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
Adshell 1902 0001 (Outside The Railway) Abbey
Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Upgrade of existing double sided advertising paper
panels with double sided internally illuminated
digital panels.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0258

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
13/05/2019

Location:
11 Little Fields Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8LE

Proposal:
Proposed rear conservatory.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0292

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
03/05/2019

Location:
8 Portland Crescent Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4ET

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension forming a sun room
and loft conversion including front dormer creating
third bedroom.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B22/2019/0316

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/05/2019

Location:
111 115 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA14 1HZ

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display non illuminated
acrylic sign to the front elevation to cover 1
redundant ATM (Retrospective)

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0332

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
31/05/2019

Location:
42 Park Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
9BB

Proposal:
Single storey rear living area extension.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0312

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/05/2019

Location:
10 The Green Lindal-in-Furness Cumbria LA12
0LX

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension and demolition of
outbuilding

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Lindal and
Marton Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0208

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/05/2019

Location:
9 London Road Lindal-in-Furness Cumbria LA12
0LL

Proposal:
Demolition of existing single storey extension to
rear of property and the construction of a two
storey rear extension to provide new kitchen/dining
area and accessible toilet to ground floor and two
new bedrooms and bathroom to first floor.
Extension is to provide level access throughout the
ground for to enable wheelchair access.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Lindal and
Marton Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0226

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
15/05/2019

Location:
The Co-operative Food Market Street Dalton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA15 8DJ

Proposal:
Notice of intention to (works to trees within
conservation area):
TG1 – The trees are over-weighted and hanging
over a creek towards the neighbours properties.
The limbs that are hanging over the creek will be
reduced by 1-2 metres to ensure the shape and
structure of the trees are not grossly affected

TG2 – 3 limbs will be removed that are in contact
with the wall. The tree is a multi-stem and the
stems on the creek/neighbours side will be ‘sided
up’ which will affectively remove the branches of
each stem. No major structural wood will be
removed, it will on effect the small/young branches
(1-2 metres in length)

TG3 – Minimal pruning of 1 metre to any branch
that is encroaching on the street lighting. There are
no structural branches in the lighting space, only
small younger branches. The shape of the tree will
not be affected

TG4 – Selective reduction of semi-mature and
mature trees hanging over the creek. The trees are
causing a flood risk with any dropping limbs.
Similar to TG1 and 2 the smaller branches will be
removed and the tree reduced on the creek side by
1 metre

Overall, there are no major structural branches that
will be removed except the ones in TG2 that are in
contact with the wall. The entire job is trimming
away from lights and the creek therefore only small
branches being removed

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B20/2019/0271

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
20/05/2019

Location:
Tyre Services Great Britain Ltd, Roose Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13 9RQ

Proposal:
Material change of use from former tyre fitting and
vehicle maintenance and repair use (B2) to Charity
Superstore (Use Class A1)

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0318

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
30/05/2019

Location:
40 Market Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8AA

Proposal:
Replacement timber framed windows

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0321

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
17/05/2019

Location:
16 Caspian Road Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7HW

Proposal:
Proposed rear ground floor extension forming a
sun room, incorporating a pitched roof
(resubmission of 21/2018/0285 in a revised form)

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0325

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
31/05/2019

Location:
28 Hawcoat Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HF

Proposal:
Single rear storey extension forming a sunroom
with a parapet and internal alterations

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0324

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
30/05/2019

Location:
1 Thirlmere Close Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8QS

Proposal:
Double storey rear/side extension forming a
garage, wc and utility at ground floor level, new 3rd
bedroom with en-suite and bedroom 4 at first floor
level and single storey ground floor rear extension
forming extended kitchen.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B26/2019/0101

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
24/05/2019

Location:
85 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
5ES

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for an
Existing Use or Development as a Guest House
(Use Class C1)

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B31/2019/0322

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/05/2019

Location:
Street Record Hayeswater Drive Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for a non-material amendment
following grant of planning permission
B07/2016/0126 (Residential development of 13
dwellings) to allow surface water drainage from
plots 1,2,3,5 and 6 to be taken into the main
highway surface drain via the swale, as opposed to
individual soakaways

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B31/2019/0343

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/05/2019

Location:
1-5 Lawson Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 2LS

Proposal:
Application for a non-material amendment
following grant of planning permission 2017/0578
(Construction of three-storey rear extension and
conversion of existing offices to form 18 one
bedroom flats) to omit cat-slide dormer to rear
elevation.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B22/2019/0273

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
08/05/2019

Location:
Former Barrow Police Station Market Street
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 2LE

Proposal:
Advertisement Consent to install two sets of
internally illuminated built up letters and logos

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0294

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
24/05/2019

Location:
37 Walney Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 5UG

Proposal:
Demolition of existing single storey rear extension
and rebuilding as part single/part two storey rear
extension comprising enlarged kitchen,
bathroom/shower room and store. (amended
description 22.5.19).

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0305

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
22/05/2019

Location:
6 Nelson Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8AF

Proposal:
Replacement front door with a new timber victorian
style door.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0237

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
03/05/2019

Location:
10 Clovelly Terrace Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HG

Proposal:
Rear kitchen/living room area/dining area
extension

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0320

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/05/2019

Location:
86 Schneider Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5DP

Proposal:
Double storey side and part rear extension to
provide store, WC and utility room to ground floor
with bedroom and bathroom to first floor.  Single
storey rear kitchen and dining room extension

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/9003

Decision:
COMMSENT

Decision Date:
22/05/2019

Location:
Barrow-in-Furness Library, Ramsden Square,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1LL

Proposal:
(County Matter)
Listed Building Consent for creation of new publicly
accessible spaces to first floor level including
installation of an external escape staircase &
refurbishment of existing lift; installation of new
public male and female WC's and an accessible
WC to first floor level; Removal of existing shelving
and racking to existing 3 storey area known as
'The Stack' and forming new floors to correspond
with existing ground and first floor level, creation of
new offices/meeting rooms.  Other works include-
creation of a Multi Purpose Meeting Room to
ground floor level; New public male & female WC's
and a Changing Places facility to ground floor
level, repair or replacement works are to be carried
out  to existing roof over current Research Room
at ground floor level to Duke Street side of
building, new disabled access/fire escape walkway
and stairs from first floor multi-events room.
Staircase to be located in the existing yard at the
rear of the building. (Revised Scheme to
B28/2018/9004)

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B18/2019/0156

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
13/05/2019

Location:
Former Salthouse Pavilion Bingo, Roose Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13 9RQ

Proposal:
Construction of external accessible ramp to Roose
Road elevation, re-positioning of door to side
elevation,replacement of rear boundary wall with
2.4m high  security fencing and resurfacing of
courtyard for use as a car park with new vehicular
access onto Salthouse Road.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B20/2019/0277

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
21/05/2019

Location:
3 Friars Lane, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13
9NP

Proposal:
Change of use from a residential dwelling (C3) to a
Beauty Salon (Sui Generis)

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B20/2019/0189

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
02/05/2019

Location:
St Matthews Church Harrogate Street Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Change of use from Church to community hall.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2019/0372

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
31/05/2019

Location:
9 Badger Court Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
5XS

Proposal:
Application to fell a prunus tree included within
area covered by Tree Preservation Order 1986 No.
2

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B13/2019/0147

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
23/05/2019

Location:
Store to Rear of Church Hall, Knox Street, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Outline Planning Permission for the conversion of
former scout hut (store) to a residential dwelling
with landscaping reserved.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0153

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/05/2019

Location:
36 Oak Head Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3EZ

Proposal:
Erection of a two storey side extension forming
ground floor lobby , store/office and wc/utility/plant
room, first floor master bedroom and en-suite,
conversion of loft to bedroom and rear ground floor
family room.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Adrian Adams

Reference:
B21/2019/0231

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/05/2019

Location:
70 Park Drive, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13
9BB

Proposal:
Erection of a single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0234

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/05/2019

Location:
166 Yarlside Road, Barrow-in-Furness,Cumbria,
LA13 0EX

Proposal:
Demolish rear conservatory and replace with
single storey sun lounge extension with mono
pitched slate roof.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0005

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
29/04/2019

Location:
44 Black Butts Lane Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3AW

Proposal:
Single storey side extension forming extended
kitchen, dining room and bathroom.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
07/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0389

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
09/05/2019

Location:
61 Clarence Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5LS

Proposal:
Removal of wall between kitchen and dining
room and new lintel above dining room
window.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
09/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0423

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
23/05/2019

Location:
18 Hall Garth Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0QT

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
23/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0102

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
15/04/2019

Location:
King Alfred Hotel Ocean Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 3DU

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/06/2019

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0336

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
17/04/2019

Location:
19 Rising Side Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9ES

Proposal:
Removal of internal load bearing wall and new
ground floor shower room.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
02/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0344

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
23/04/2019

Location:
Blister Workshop, Building A69, BAE Systems,
Bridge Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Refurbishment of existing mezzanine level to
provide improved welfare facilities and locker
room accommodation involving installation of
modular steel partitioning and associated
suspended ceiling, improvements to fire
protection provisions to provide 1 hour zone
segregation and installation of air conditioning
provisions.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/06/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0367

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
30/04/2019

Location:
14 Croft Gardens Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8BS

Proposal:
Part ground floor infill extension below
overhanging first floor element.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/05/2019

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0375

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/05/2019

Location:
46 Portsmouth Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3AH

Proposal:
Removal of pantry wall to enlarge kitchen.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/05/2019

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0376

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
02/05/2019

Location:
6 Norham Close Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0GS

Proposal:
Rear extension

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0383

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
08/05/2019

Location:
25 Holebeck Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0HR

Proposal:
Single storey kitchen/ diner extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
08/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0390

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
09/05/2019

Location:
47 Balmoral Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0HX

Proposal:
Removal of wall between kitchen and dining
room, block up existing back door and
replacement of window opening to door.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
09/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0392

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
10/05/2019

Location:
13 Romney Road Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8UE

Proposal:
Demolition and rebuild  of garage.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
10/05/2019

Page 52

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0393

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
09/05/2019

Location:
9 Lord Roberts Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3PW

Proposal:
Rear bathroom extension and conversion of
existing first floor bathroom to bedroom.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
21/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0404

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
14/05/2019

Location:
2 Brook Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9SU

Proposal:
Rear extension.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
14/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0335

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
17/04/2019

Location:
45 Longlands Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AG

Proposal:
First floor flat roofed extension over existing
ground floor extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
13/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0278

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
01/04/2019

Location:
BAE Systems Bridge Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Construction of a new primary data centre
building.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
14/05/2019

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0406

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
14/05/2019

Location:
95 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5ES

Proposal:
Widening of existing internal opening.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
14/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0395

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
16/05/2019

Location:
2 Clovelly Terrace Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HG

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
16/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0413

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
17/05/2019

Location:
7 Yarlside Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0ES

Proposal:
Removal of wall between kitchen and dining
room.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
20/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0419

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
22/05/2019

Location:
2 Turnstone Crescent Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7JT

Proposal:
Formation of structural opening between
dining room and study

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
22/05/2019

Page 54

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0420

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
22/05/2019

Location:
5 Lakeland Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AY

Proposal:
Garage conversion.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
22/05/2019

Reference
Number:
RA/2019/0431

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
29/05/2019

Location:
10 Warwick Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5AX

Proposal:
Removal of chimney breast in dining area.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
31/05/2019

Reference
Number:
RA/2019/0438

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
30/05/2019

Location:
84 North Row Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0HF

Proposal:
Remove existing window and replace with
patio doors.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
31/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0440

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/06/2019

Location:
71 Greengate Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 1EZ

Proposal:
Kitchen extension and relocate back door.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/06/2019

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0443

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/06/2019

Location:
98 Duddon Road Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7FB

Proposal:
Repositioning stairs, replacement windows
and doors,open under the stairs, removal of
chimney breast, convert bedroom into a
shower room and the installation of a skylight
in the kitchen flat roof.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/06/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0444

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/06/2019

Location:
24 Minster Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9NY

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/06/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0446

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/06/2019

Location:
9 Hawcoat Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HE

Proposal:
Structural alterations to kitchen.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/06/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0447

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/06/2019

Location:
4 Tennyson Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9TX

Proposal:
Structural alterations to kitchen.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/06/2019

Page 56

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0055

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
26/03/2019

Location:
21 Hadleigh Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0GR

Proposal:
Demolition of existing conservatory and
construction of a new single storey rear
extension as enlarged kitchen

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
14/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0279

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
01/04/2019

Location:
25 Penrith Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 2BP

Proposal:
Extension to form dining/utility room.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
02/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0169

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
02/04/2019

Location:
2 Flass Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0AB

Proposal:
Rear single storey kitchen extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
09/05/2019

Reference
Number:
BV/2019/0310

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
05/04/2019

Location:
26 Lyndale Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9AR

Proposal:
Utility and Store Extension.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Withdrawn

Decision
Date:
31/05/2019

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0333

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
12/04/2019

Location:
86 Schneider Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5DP

Proposal:
Double storey side extension and single storey
rear extension.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
17/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0334

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
16/04/2019

Location:
7 Beach Crescent Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3YA

Proposal:
Rear dormer loft conversion with gable roof
replacing hip roof.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
07/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0347

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
23/04/2019

Location:
16 Strathmore Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3DH

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension and internal
alterations to form a utility room and WC.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0350

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
25/04/2019

Location:
48 Trent Vale Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3NB

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension and internal
alterations.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
09/05/2019

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0193

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
25/04/2019

Location:
237 Ireleth Road Ireleth Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7DL

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
04/06/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0211

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
29/04/2019

Location:
4 Summit Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9JB

Proposal:
Rear kitchen/ living area extension.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
13/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0203

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
06/03/2019

Location:
3 Vicarage Field Church Hill Lindal-in-Furness
Cumbria LA12 0LT

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension forming enlarged
living, kitchen and dining area.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
03/05/2019

Reference
Number:
FV/2019/0262/
MAST

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
25/03/2019

Location:
Former Lonsdale Hospital School Street
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of 7 dwellings, 4 houses and 3 flats
on plots 23-29.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
23/05/2019

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 18/06/2019

Reference
Number:
DS/2019/0005

Application
Type:
Dangerous
Structure

Received:
28/05/2019

Location:
74 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5UB

Proposal:
Partial collapse of rear annex masonry and
roof

Ward:
Error could not
find ward

Decision:
Danger

Decision
Date:
28/05/2019

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

BOOK FOR DECISION 
 

18th June  2019 
 

 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen,  
 
 The applications within this report have been submitted for determination 
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation. 
 
 All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be 
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for 
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion 
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council, 
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the 
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council. 
 
 The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of 
background papers. 
 
 
 
 

Jason Hipkiss 
 

Planning Manager 
 

Page 1 of 50

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



B18/2019/0338 
Planning Committee  

18
th
 June 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0338 Date Valid :24/04/2019 

Address : Earnse Bay Car Park West 
Shore Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Proposed portacabin for use as a kite surfing teaching classroom and store. 

Ward : Walney North Ward Parish : N/A 

Applicant : Mr C Ainsbury   Agent : Mr C Ainsbury   

Statutory Date : 19/06/2019 
Recommendation :  Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-008 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-083 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-170 

Local Plan Policies 
 

1. Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
2. Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
3. Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Policy HC8 - New outdoor sports facilities 
5. Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity 

 

Summary of Main Issues 

The key issues relate to the siting and visual appearance of the building and the potential 
impact on the adjacent protected sites (SSSI, SAC & SPA). A lesser issue relates to the 
impact of encouraging this type of business in terms of the wider leisure offer within the 
Borough and the potential to increase visitor numbers. 

 

Page 2 of 50

Page 62

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B18/2019/0338


Non Material Considerations 

N/A 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Development advertised on site  

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
West Shore Park 224, 225, 226, 227, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Natural England 
   
List of Organisation Responses 
 
Barrow Borough Council (Estates) 01/05/2019  

“No comment from Estates” 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 13/05/2019  

"Our response is the following: 

The BAE site is covered by the provision of the Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and 
Public Information) 2001 Regulations. There are no objections to the proposed 
development based on the information provided but it should be noted that the proposed 
development is situated within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of BAE. Cumbria 
County Council, in liaison with the site operator and the Office for  Nuclear Regulation, have 
certain special arrangements are made for residents/business premises in this area and 
particular attention is paid to ensuring that people are aware of the appropriate action to 
take in the event of an incident at the site.  Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in 
the event of the application being approved, advise the applicant to liaise with this office to 
allow for further discussion." 

Page 3 of 50

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



 Cumbria County Council (Highways & Lead Local Flood Authority) 15/05/2019  

"Thank you for your consultation on 30/04/2019 regarding the above Planning Application. 

Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 

Highway response 

It is considered that the proposal will not have a material effect on existing highway 
conditions.  I can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority has no objection to the 
proposal. 

LLFA response 

The LLFA surface water maps show that the site is very close to an area of flooding and 
indicates that a 3% chance of flooding occurring close to the site each year"   

Natural England 20/05/2019  

"Thank you for consulting Natural England on this proposal. 

The proposed the location is 30m from the Duddon Estuary SSSI, Morecambe Bay SAC, 
and Morecambe Bay and Duddon Estuary SPA. 

The proposal itself, due to its scale, is unlikely to have any significant effects on these sites. 

However Natural England receive reports of significant bird disturbance from kite surfers in 
this area. We request that education of the adjacent protected sites are provided as part of 
the kite surfing training that is delivered. Ideally a code of conduct should be proposed to 
guide those using the immediate area for kite surfing, with a set of guidelines to adhere to." 

United Utilities 07/05/2019  

"With reference to the above planning application, United Utilities wishes to draw attention 
to the following as a means to facilitate sustainable development within the region. 

Drainage 

In  accordance  with  the  National  Planning  Policy  Framework  (NPPF)  and  the National 
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 
foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 
way. 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 50

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



The NPPG clearly outlines the hierarchy to be investigated by the developer when 
considering a surface water drainage strategy. We would ask the developer to consider 
the following drainage options in the following order of priority: 

1. into the ground (infiltration); 

2. to a surface water body; 

3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; 

4. to a combined sewer. 

We recommend the applicant implements the scheme in accordance with the surface water 
drainage hierarchy outlined above. 

If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United Utilities, 
the proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by an Adoptions 
Engineer as we need to be sure that the proposal meets the requirements of Sewers for 
adoption and United Utilities’ Asset Standards. The proposed design should give 
consideration to long term operability and give United Utilities a cost effective proposal for 
the life of the assets. Therefore, should this application be approved and the applicant 
wishes to progress a Section 104 agreement, we strongly recommend that no construction 
commences until the detailed drainage design, submitted as part of the Section 104 
agreement, has been assessed and accepted in writing by United Utilities. Any works 
carried out prior to the technical assessment being approved is done entirely at the 
developers own risk and could be subject to change. 

Details of both our S106 sewer connections and S104 sewer adoptions processes 
(including application forms) can be found on our website 
http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders- developers.aspx 

Please note we are not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to the local 
watercourse system.   This is a matter for you to discuss with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority and /  or the Environment Agency if the watercourse is classified as main river. 

Water supply 

If the applicant intends to obtain a water supply from United Utilities for the proposed 
development, we strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity. If 
reinforcement of the water network is required to meet the demand, this could be a 
significant project which should be accounted for in the project timeline for design and 
construction. 

To discuss a potential water supply or any of the water comments detailed above, the 
applicant can contact the team at  DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk. 

Please  note,  all  internal  pipework  must  comply  with  current  Water  Supply  (water 
fittings) Regulations 1999. 

Page 5 of 50

Page 65

Agenda Item 8

http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx
http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx
mailto:DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk


 

United Utilities’ property, assets and infrastructure 

A public sewer crosses this site and we may not permit building over it. We will 
require an access strip width of six metres, three metres either side of the centre line 
of the sewer which is in accordance with the minimum distances specified in the 
current issue of "Sewers for Adoption", for maintenance or replacement. Therefore a 
modification of the site layout, or a diversion of the affected public sewer  at  the 
applicant's  expense,  may  be  necessary. To  establish if  a  sewer diversion is 
feasible, the applicant must discuss this at an early stage with our Developer 
Engineer at wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk as a lengthy lead in period 
may be required if a sewer diversion proves to be acceptable. 

Deep rooted shrubs and  trees should not be planted in  the vicinity of  the public 
sewer and overflow systems. 

Where United Utilities’ assets exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers 
must not be compromised either during or after construction. 

For advice regarding protection of United Utilities’ assets, the applicant should contact the 
teams as follows: 

Water assets – DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk 

Wastewater assets – WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk 

It  is  the  applicant's responsibility  to  investigate  the  possibility  of  any  United 
Utilities’  assets potentially impacted by their proposals and to demonstrate the 
exact relationship between any United Utilities' assets and the proposed 
development. 

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. To find out 
how to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please visit the Property 
Searches website; https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/. You can also view 
the plans for free. To make an  appointment to  view our sewer records at  your local 
authority please contact them direct, alternatively if you wish to view the water and the 
sewer records at our Lingley Mere offices based in Warrington please ring  0370 751 0101  
to book an appointment. 

Due to the public sewer transfer in 2011, not all sewers are currently shown on the statutory 
sewer records and we do not always show private pipes on our plans. If a sewer is 
discovered during construction; please contact a Building Control Body to discuss the 
matter further. 

For any further information regarding Developer Services and Planning, please visit our 
website at http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx" 

  

Page 6 of 50

Page 66

Agenda Item 8

mailto:wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk
mailto:DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk
mailto:WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk
https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/
http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx


  

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site is in an area of open land immediately to the west of the public 
conveniences and car park, and to the south of West Shore caravan park.  A public 
footpath runs along the western side of the land, forming a coastal path, beyond which 
are sea defences and the shoreline beyond.  The path effectively forms the boundary 
between the protected sites off the coast (Duddon Estuary SSSI, Morecambe Bay SAC, 
and Morecambe Bay and Duddon Estuary SPA) and the mainland.  The site falls 
approximately 35m outside of these designations. 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Proposed portacabin type building for use as a kite surfing teaching classroom and 
store. 

3. Relevant History 

3.1 No history revealed for this application 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The application is reported to members as it is to be sited on a Council owned 
asset.  The proposal is to provide a training classroom for kite surfing, with an associated 
store.  Kite surfing currently takes place off the coast so this location would provide a 
nearby base, which also benefits from a public car park and conveniences on the adjoining 
land.  The immediate benefit of such a facility is that it widens the Boroughs leisure offer 
with clear economic benefits arising from increased visitor numbers and raising the profile 
of the area as a kite surfing venue.  This benefit has to considered against the potential 
impacts that may arise from the siting of such a facility in this location, both in terms of 
appearance and upon the ecological designations.  Policy HC8 requires that the 
development will not result in visual harm to the character and appearance of the 
surroundings, in this case the coastal area. 

4.2 Pre-application advice was given prior to submission, with guidance on the visual 
appearance as follows; "The type of building/structure on the site will be crucial to its 
acceptance. This is a very public area which is popular with summer visitors using the 
beach. Old static caravans and scruffy shipping containers should be avoided as we would 
want a good standard of visual amenity provided. Any containers should be painted in an 
appropriate colour which can be agreed through the planning application process. If you are 
considering a mobile building then the same principles apply. They should be in in a good 
state of repair and appearance." 

 

 

Page 7 of 50

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



 

4.3 The submitted design incorporates a standard "Portacabin" style/sized unit, but is clad 
with a cedar lap wood effect cladding.  This provides a better aesthetic than a painted 
container, which was one of the suggested minimums in the advice given.  Aside from the 
installation of 4 foundation pad stones, the structure is not as invasive as a permanent 
building.  The location of the unit forms a grouping with the public conveniences to the east, 
preventing it being seen in isolation.  It is considered to comply with the relevant criteria of 
HC8.  No foul or surface water drainage is proposed - the former can be met from the use 
of the adjacent public conveniences, whilst the small scale of the development prevents the 
need for any specific surface water system.  The rain water will discharge as at present 
onto the grassed open field and continue to drain naturally.   

4.4 Natural England (NE) has been consulted, commenting that the building/installation itself 
is not likely to result in significant effects on the designated sites due to the small scale.  
Taking this into account, alongside the limited scale and nature of the facility, it is not 
considered that any mitigation is necessary to arrive at such a conclusion; for the purposes 
of the Habitats Regulations assessment such significant effects can be screened out 
without the need to carry out an appropriate assessment.  However NE did comment that 
numerous reports of disturbance to birds from kite surfers have been received.  Whilst this 
is not as a direct result of the proposal at hand, the two are closely linked, particularly if the 
activity intensifies.  As such NE has requested that education of the adjacent protected 
sites is provided as part of the kite surfing training delivered with, ideally, a code of conduct 
adopted to guide those using the immediate area for kite surfing, with a set of guidelines to 
adhere to.  An appropriate condition has been drafted for such information to be submitted, 
though it is not considered it can be required pre-commencement given the activity is 
existing and free to continue. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The careful siting and design of the cabin prevents any significant visual harm to the 
coastal landscape.  The nearby public car park and conveniences allow for a smaller scale 
facility, which results in very little intrusion due to the lack of need for any services etc.  
These factors also combine to prevent any likely significant effects on the protected sites 
located off the coast, though requiring further education is considered appropriate to try and 
alleviate any existing disturbance.  It is considered to conform to policies HC8 and N3. The 
facility widens the Borough's leisure activity offering which can contribute to increased 
visitor numbers and in turn providing economic benefit.  In the absence of any significant 
harm, the development should be approved in line with the development plan.  

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 
 
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 
with the date of this permission. 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 50

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 13/04/19 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
KSTC/1 & KSTC/3 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
Operational Conditions 
 
3. No storage shall take place outside the confines of the building unless in accordance with 
a detailed scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority 
prior to the commencement of any outdoor storage activity. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of the visual amenities of the area due to the open coastal location. 
 
4. Within 6 months of the commencement of the use hereby approved further details of 
education to be provided at the training centre must be submitted for approval, with specific 
regard to reducing any potential impacts on the wildlife interests of the Duddon Estuary 
SSSI, Morecambe Bay SAC, and Morecambe Bay and Duddon Estuary SPA. This should 
include a code of conduct to guide those using the immediate area/protected sites for kite 
surfing, with a set of guidelines to adhere to, and the provision of advisory notification signs 
located in the near vicinity of the site and associated activity. 
 
Reason 
 
In order to educate and minimise the potential for disturbance from existing activity to the 
wildlife associated with the adjacent protected sites. 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 9 of 50

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



Informative 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed.   
 

 A public sewer crosses this site and United Utilities may not permit building over it. 
An access strip width of six metres, three metres either side of the centre line of the 
sewer is required, which is in accordance with the minimum distances specified in 
the current issue of "Sewers for Adoption", for maintenance or replacement. 
Therefore a modification of the site layout, or a diversion of the affected public sewer 
at the applicant's expense, may be necessary. To establish if a sewer diversion is 
feasible, the applicant must discuss this at an early stage with a UU Developer 
Engineer at wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk as a lengthy lead in period 
may be required if a sewer diversion proves to be acceptable. 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 50

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



Page 11 of 50

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 8



Page 12 of 50

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 8



Page 13 of 50

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 8



B20/2019/0187 
Planning Committee  

18
th
 June 2019  

  

  

Application Number : B20/2019/0187 Date Valid : 04/03/2019 

Address : 66 Market Street Dalton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA15 8AA 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Change of use from Estate Agents (Use Class A2) to a Beauty and Tanning 
Salon (Use Class Sui-Generis), including existing rear extension demolished and widened 
and new signage to front elevation 

Ward : Dalton South Ward 
Parish : Dalton Town with Newton Parish 
Council 

Applicant : Mr Paul Griffiths   Agent : Mr Malcolm Jones   

Statutory Date : 29/04/2019 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-085 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-155 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-192 

Local Plan Policies 
 

1. Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
2. Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
3. Policy DS5 – Design 
4. Policy HE1 - Heritage Assets and their setting 
5. Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas 
6. Policy R6 - Non-Retail Uses in Dalton Town Centre 

 

 

 

Page 14 of 50

Page 74

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B20/2019/0187


Summary of Main Issues 

An existing non-retail use is proposed to change to a different non-retail use.  Following 
negotiation the revised shop front alterations result in an enhancement to the property and 
conservation area. 

Non Material Considerations 

Connecting into adjoining property's wall. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

The application has been advertised by site notice and press advert.  

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name                 Properties   
  
 

Market Street                 64, 68, Flat 2 68,  
                                      Flat 4 68, Flat 1 68,  
                                      Flat 3 68, Flat 5 68, 70, 

  
  
 

  
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

2 0 1 1 

Objection summary 

Pitched roof would be preferred to the flat roof proposed. 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Dalton With Newton Town Council 
Heritage Trust For The North West 
Historic England (North West) 
Joint Committee of the National Amenity Society 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 15 of 50

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



List of Organisation Responses 

Cumbria County Council Emergency Planning 08/03/2019  

"Our response is the following: There are no objections to the proposed development but it 
should be noted that the proposed development is situated within the potential inundation 
area for Harlock and Poaka Beck Reservoirs. These Reservoirs falls under the Water 
Framework Directive and has a prepared off site emergency planning.  

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved, 
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion of available 
information. Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application 
being approved, advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion." 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 20/03/2019  

"Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 

Highways response: 

Taking into account the existing use of the property, it is considered that the proposal will 
be unlikely to have a material effect on existing highway conditions.  I can therefore confirm 
that the Highway Authority has no objection to the proposal. However I would recommend 
that the following conditions are considered for any permission you might grant: 

 Any new ground floor windows and doors abutting the highway shall be of a type 
which cannot open outwards into the highway. 

Reason:  To minimise possible danger to other highway users. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8  

 There shall be minimum clearance of 2.44m between the surface of the highway and 
the lowest part of any structure where it overhangs the highway (including the 
footway, footpath or verge). 

Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and to minimise possible danger to other 
highway users. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies:  LD7, LD8 

LLFA response: 

The Environment Agency (EA) surface water maps indicate that the site is in flood zone 2. 
The applicant should consult with the Environment Agency regarding a flood risk 
assessment."  

 

Page 16 of 50

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



 

Dalton With Newton Town Council 03/05/2019  

"The Town Council have no objections." 

Historic England (North West) 06/03/2019  

"Thank you for your consultation regarding the above application. On the basis of the 
information available to date, in our view you do not need to notify or consult us on this 
application under the relevant statutory provisions. 

If you consider that this application does fall within one of the relevant categories, or you 
have other reasons for seeking our advice, please contact us to discuss your request". 

  

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The end of terrace property is located within both the allocated Dalton Town Centre (for 
Policy purposes) and the Conservation Area.  It is also sited within Flood Risk Zones 2 & 3.  
Currently vacant, it was previously used as an estate agents.  The current non original 
shopfront has little historical merit, featuring differing sized windows in the upper floors and 
an oversize fascia board and display window.  The adjacent properties are commercial, with 
a hairdressers and newsagents within the row; those immediately adjacent have a more 
traditional appearance.  A narrow ginnel runs to the side of the property leading to Garden 
Terrace at the rear and giving limited rear access to the property. 

2.Proposal Details 

2.1 Change of use from Estate Agents (Use Class A2) to a Beauty and Tanning Salon (Use 
Class Sui-Generis), including existing rear extension demolished and widened and new 
signage to front elevation. 

3.Relevant History 

No history revealed for this application. 

4.Officer Assessment 

4.1 The main considerations relate to the provision/continuation of a non-retail use at the 
premises and the wider impact on the shopping function within Dalton centre, the design 
considerations of the shop front alterations and the small rear enclosure. 

 

 

Page 17 of 50

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



Retail use 

4.2 Policy R6 allows non retail (A1) uses where the proposal complements the retail function 
and makes a positive contribution to the town centre.  It states this can be achieved 
by maintaining active continuous retail frontages, signage and hours of opening.  It does 
however seek to avoid a detrimental effect on the character and amenity of the town 
centre and on the amenities of town centre residents.  In this case the last use was A2 
(financial and professional services - estate agent) so was not in active retail use.  The 
proposed sun tanning salon is considered a 'sui generis' use, i.e. within a class of its own.  
Following negotiation it is now proposed to maintain an "active" shop window by omitting 
the originally proposed frosted glass, and rearranging the internal layout to site the 
reception desk in front of the window.  It was first proposed to locate a tanning booth behind 
the window which, with the frosted glass, would have provided a dead frontage which 
contributed little to retail flow of the street.  The midweek hours of opening exceed that of a 
typical retail unit (9am - 8pm) which should contribute to overall footfall and potential linked 
trips to other shops and services.  The use itself should not harm residential amenity as a 
result of disturbance from the activity within.  Whilst not A1 retail, it can be considered to 
complement the retail function given the changes. 

Design 

4.3 The existing frontage is of little historic or architectural merit.  The proposed scheme as 
first submitted offered a small improvement in the form of a stall riser below the reduced 
sized shop window.  This benefit was lost however by the 'dead frontage' resulting from the 
frosted glass and internal arrangement, along with the loss of the fan light and the retention 
of the over sized fascia.  HE1, HE4 and section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires special attention to be paid to the desirability of 
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  It was considered the 
proposal achieved neither aim.  Following negotiation, a revised design has been 
submitted.  This includes the creation of a more traditional shop front, featuring pilasters, a 
fan light, stall riser and a reduced fascia.  The design is styled on the adjacent property.  

4.4 Whilst the upper floor windows are retained in terms of size (first floor window over-sized 
when compared to the terrace), they are being replaced with sliding sash units with ultra 
slim double glazing.  Being on the upper floors, they are not quite as prominent and their 
value lies in the group value when viewed together.  Whilst a resizing of the 1st floor 
window would be preferred, it is considered the overall improvement is beneficial and 
results in an enhancement of the conservation area. 

4.5 The rear extension is effectively an enclosure of the yard area.  Sitting alongside a 
similar arrangement next door, albeit that has a pitched roof, the enclosure has no negative 
impact.  The use of upvc is prevalent throughout the rear elevation, thus its use in this 
regard does not cause any further harm to the conservation area, given it is a functional, 
secondary elevation on the edge of the designation.  Comment has been made that a 
pitched roof would be preferable, with issue raised about tying into a neighbouring 
property.  The latter is not a planning consideration, whilst the former, for the 
aforementioned reasons, would not significantly improve the proposal to warrant insisting 
on such a change. 

Page 18 of 50

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



 

4.6 Cumbria Highways has suggested possible conditions though they are not warranted in 
this instance given the design; no projecting elements are proposed nor any outward 
opening doors/window at ground floor level.  In terms of flood risk, the primary development 
is the change of use; as the proposed use does not change the vulnerability classification it 
remains as 'less vulnerable.'  For such minor development formal consultation is not 
required with the Environment Agency, instead reference to their standing advice is 
required.  This requires consideration of whether flood risk will increase as a result of the 
development (alterations to floor levels, additional drainage etc), or if it will increase the risk 
of flooding elsewhere.  A more flexible approach has to be taken with existing buildings 
otherwise many in such areas would remain empty, and as such the sequential and 
exemption tests do not apply.  In this instance, the vulnerability classification does not alter 
and there is no material change in flood risk to the property or indeed elsewhere.  It 
therefore conforms with Policy DS2, sustainability criteria. 

5.Conclusions 

5.1 The proposal provides a complementary use to the overall retail/commercial function of 
Dalton town centre, whilst the redesign results in a much improved shop 
frontage, reinstating a traditional character which enhances the conservation area and 
meets the aims of policies HE1 & HE4, alongside the statutory duty to have regard to the 
preservation or enhancement of conservation areas. 

6.Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard Duration 
Limit and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning 
with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated 28/02/19 and the hereby approved documents defined by this 
permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 
 
MEJ/2019/455: 003, 004 Issue 2, 005, 006, 007, 008, 009 & 010 Issue 2. 

 
 

Page 19 of 50

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
During Building Works 
 
3. Prior to installation, detailed specification including sample sections of joinery work 
(glazing bars, sills etc.) or working drawings (scale 1:20, 1:10, 1:5, half or full size etc.) fully 
detailing the replacement windows (cross sections for full glazing bars, sills, heads etc.) 
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The development 
shall be carried out using the approved specification and retained thereafter. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the proposed works can be effected without detriment to the special 
architectural and historic interest of the conservation area. 
 
4. The approved shopfront must be constructed in timber and in accordance with the 
approved drawing, reference MEJ/2019/455/010 Issue 2, and painted with a flat satin or 
eggshell finish. 
 
Reason 
 
In the interests of visual amenity and to enhance the character of the conservation area. 
 
Before Occupation 
 
5. Prior to the beneficial use of the tanning salon hereby approved, both the alterations to 
the front elevation of the property and the ground floor layout/arrangement shall be 
constructed and completed in accordance with drawing references MEJ/2019/455/004 
Issue 2 MEJ/2019/455/010 Issue 2 and thereafter retained. 
 
Reason 
 
The approved layout with a front facing reception area is considered to complement the 
retail function of the town centre, whilst the shopfront alterations enhance the visual 
amenities of the conservation area. 

Operational Conditions 
 
6. The ground floor shopfront window and door must incorporate clear glazing, with no 
internal or external window film or similar used to obscure views into the premises, and 
thereafter be permanently retained. 
 
Reason 
 
The approved shopfront is considered to complement the retail function of the town centre 
by providing an active frontage. 
 

Page 20 of 50

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



Informative 
  

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed. 
 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 
 

 This consent does not give or infer any consent for any external signage.  
 
 

 

  

  

  

Page 21 of 50

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



Page 22 of 50

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



Page 23 of 50

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



Page 24 of 50

Page 84

Agenda Item 8



Page 25 of 50

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



Page 26 of 50

Page 86

Agenda Item 8



Page 27 of 50

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



Page 28 of 50

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



Page 29 of 50

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 8



Page 30 of 50

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 8



B20/2019/0259 
Planning Committee 

18
th
 June 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B20/2019/0259 Date Valid : 08/04/2019 

Address : 93 Market Street Dalton-in-
Furness Cumbria LA15 8DL 

Case Officer : Barry Jesson 

Proposal : Change of use from shop (Use Class A1) to office accommodation 
(Use Class B1) 

Ward : Dalton South Ward 
Parish : Dalton Town with Newton 
Parish Council 

Applicant : Mrs Elaine Burley   Agent : Mrs Brenda Lauderdale   

Statutory Date : 03/06/2019 
Recommendation : Granted 
with conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 

National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-085 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-155 
3. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-192 

Local Plan Policies 
 

1. Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
2. Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 
3. Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Policy HE1 - Heritage Assets and their setting 
5. Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas 
6. Policy R6 - Non-Retail Uses in Dalton Town Centre 

Summary of Main Issues 

The continuation of an existing temporary use and the potential impact on the retail 
function of the town centre. 

Page 31 of 50

Page 91

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B20/2019/0259


Non Material Considerations 

Advertisements covered by separate regulations. 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Development was advertised on site. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Market Street 87A, 91, 95, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

0 0 0 0 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Dalton With Newton Town Council 
 

List of Organisation Responses 

  
Dalton With Newton Town Council 03/05/2019  

"The Town Council regret the loss of another retail premises in the Town Centre and 
would prefer it to stay as retail.  The current sign which has been installed is not in 
keeping with the area and the Town Council would request that the applicant be 
requested to replace the sign with something of a more appropriate design." 

  

Officers Report 

1.Site and Locality 

1.1 The application relates to a mid terrace 1.5 storey property that sits within a 
terrace of commercial/retail properties fronting Market Street, close to the junction 
with Station Road.  Within the row are a takeaway, a florist and a general mix of retail 
premises.  The character of the town centre is of mixed commercial, different to the 
primary retail area found in Barrow which has a more specific A1 retail core.  
Occupancy levels are quite high, with seemingly only around 4 or 5 vacant 
premises.  The property sits within the Dalton Conservation Area.   

Page 32 of 50

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



 

2.Proposal Details 

2.1 Change of use from shop (Use Class A1) to office accommodation (Use Class 
B1). 

3.Relevant History 

3.1 46/1996/0597 Travel On 93 Market Street Dalton-in-Furness Erection of new shop 
front Appcond 12/11/1996 
 
3.2 46/1997/0468 Top Cut 91 Market Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8DL 
Installation of new shop front Appcond 02/07/1997 
 
3.3 BCO/2017/0494 93 Market Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8DL 
Permitted change of use from A1 shop to B1 Office for the Barrow and Dalton 
Conservatives from the 5th May 2017 for a period of 2 years ( a change of use fee 
will be required after this period) NO COMMENT 08/08/2017 

4.Officer Assessment 

4.1 The premises is currently being used as an office for the Conservative political 
party as a result of a 2 year temporary permission granted by The Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, Part 4, Class D; 
this proposal is to make the change of use to B1 offices permanent.  The change of 
use won't result in the loss of a retail business, rather the potential for one given the 
unit will remain occupied.  Policy R6 does permit non retail uses within Dalton town 
centre where they are complimentary to the wider retail function.  It states that this 
can be achieved by various means such as maintaining active continuous retail 
frontages, appropriate signage and hours of opening. It does however seek to avoid 
a detrimental effect on the character and amenity of the town centre and on the 
amenities of town centre residents.  

4.2 The office operates within normal town centre hours (10am-3pm) and maintains 
an active shop style window.  It does therefore provide a level of activity and footfall 
within the area which may result in linked trips to other services.  Whilst occupancy 
rates are relatively high, there are some vacant premises in the wider town centre.  
Hence whilst the aim of the R6 is to promote a retail character in the area, the non-
retail use provision in the town is not considered to be at a level whereby this 
character is lost or significantly harmed, particularly when there are other units 
available for this purpose.  In that sense the continuation of the use on a permanent 
basis is considered to compliment the wider aims of the town centre, as directed by 
R6, and prevents the unit potentially remaining vacant should no retail use occupy it 
once it reverted back. 

 

 

Page 33 of 50

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



4.3 In terms of flood risk, the development relates only to the change of use with no 
other development; as the proposed use does not change the vulnerability 
classification it remains as 'less vulnerable.'  For such minor development 
formal consultation is not required with the Environment Agency, instead reference to 
their standing advice is required.  This requires consideration of whether flood risk 
will increase as a result of the development (alterations to floor levels, additional 
drainage etc.), or if it will increase the risk of flooding elsewhere.  A more flexible 
approach has to be taken with existing buildings otherwise many in such areas would 
remain empty, and as such the sequential and exemption tests do not apply.  In this 
instance, the vulnerability classification does not alter and there is no material 
change in flood risk to the property or indeed elsewhere.  It therefore conforms with 
Policy DS2, sustainability criteria. 

4.4 No external changes are proposed which in itself preserves the character of the 
conservation area in line with the statutory duty of section 72 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  Concern has been raised by the town 
council regarding the fascia sign, but this is subject to a separate application 
process/regulations, should it indeed need to have required consent. 

5.Conclusions 

5.1 The continuation of the use is not considered to harm the wider function of the 
town centre which is of a more mixed character than the more retail specific areas 
within Barrow town centre.  No external changes are proposed, thereby preserving 
the character of the conservation area. 

6.Recommendation 
 
I recommend that Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the Standard 
Duration Limit and the following conditions : - 

  
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of this permission. 
 
Reason 
 
Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 34 of 50

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in accordance 
with the application dated 20/03/19 and the hereby approved documents defined by 
this permission as listed below, except where varied by conditions attached to this 
consent. 
 
Drawing ref: 5639, 1, 2 & 3 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings 
approved by the Planning Authority. 
 
 
Informative 
  

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the 
Building Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to 
the Planning Officer before any such works are carried out. 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. 
Please contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further 
advice as to how to proceed. 

 

 

   

  

  

  

Page 35 of 50

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



Page 36 of 50

Page 96

Agenda Item 8



Page 37 of 50

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 8



Page 38 of 50

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 8



Page 39 of 50

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 8



B18/2019/0080 
Planning Committee  

18
th
 July 2019   

  

  

Application Number : B18/2019/0080 Date Valid :19/03/2019 

Address : 11 Sun Street, Ireleth, Askam-in-
Furness, Cumbria, LA16 7ET 

Case Officer : Jennifer Dickinson 

Proposal : Construct two parking spaces in the residential garden area. Partial demolition 
of wall in conservation area (Retrospective). 

Ward : Dalton North Ward Parish : Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 

Applicant : Mr Lyndon Sherwood   Agent : Mr Dave Tyson   

Statutory Date : 14/05/2019 
Recommendation : Granted with 
conditions 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
National Policies 

1. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-011 
2. National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-192 

Local Plan Policies 
 

1. Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development 
2. Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria 

3. Policy DS5 - Design 
4. Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas 

Summary of Main Issues 

The main issues are the impact of the proposals on the conservation area and the 
protected tree and also highways issues. 

Concerns have been raised by local residents over the impact on the level of parking in the 
area. 

 

Page 40 of 50

Page 100

Agenda Item 8

https://webapps.barrowbc.gov.uk/webapps/f?p=BARROWPLANNINGHUB:APPLICATIONSEARCH::::RIR,CIR:IR_REFERENCE_NUMBER:B18/2019/0080


 

Non Material Considerations 

N/A 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 
Hollowgate High Riddings, 
Sun Street 1, 3 5, 7 9, 
   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

3 1 2 0 

Site notice displayed expiring on 25.6.19.  Advertised in the local press expiring on 27.6.19. 

Summary of responses 

- Concern over impact on parking levels due to limited width of Hollowgate Road and use of 
available area by non residents 

- Concern over no turning circle provided within the parking area 

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 

List of Organisation Responses 

Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 17/04/2019  

"This application was discussed at the parish council meeting held on Tuesday 16 April 
2019. Parking is at a premium in Sun Street and although the parking may create 2 parking 
spaces, it will take 1 parking space from the street side for the entrance to the parking area. 
But any extra parking is a bonus for this area. There were no other comments made by the 
parish council or members of the public present. Correspondence have been received from 
a resident and the parish council believe the resident has made his comments known to 
Barrow Borough Council". 

 
 

Page 41 of 50

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



 
Highways and The LLFA 28/03/2019  

"Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below. 

After a recent site visit it is considered that the proposal will not have a material affect on 
existing highway conditions.  I can therefore confirm that the Highway Authority has no 
objection to the proposal. 

Any works within the Highway must be agreed with the Highway Authority. No works and/or 
any person performing works on any part of the Highway, including Verges, will be 
permitted, until in receipt of an appropriate permit allowing such works. Enquiries should be 
made to Cumbria County Councils Streetwork’s team." 

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site is a grassed area bounded by a stone wall adjacent to the highway.  
Within the application site is a Sycamore tree subject to a Tree Preservation Order.  The 
locality of the site is a conservation area which reflects the historic nature of the properties, 
the street pattern of which is characterised by narrow roads.  

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 The application relates to the construction of  two parking spaces in the residential 
garden area belonging to The Old Parsonage which is on the opposite side of Sun 
Street from the application site. A cellular confinement system is proposed to protect the 
root system of the adjacent tree and the remainder of the land to the north and west will be 
retained as garden space.  Partial demolition of a limestone boundary wall to create a 
vehicular access has already taken place and this aspect of the proposals is retrospective. 
Previously there was a pedestrian opening in the wall measuring 1.7m and this has been 
enlarged to a vehicular opening measuring 5.1m.  Existing stone piers and coping stones 
have been re-used. 

2.2 The wall was previously modified following the issue of a dangerous structure notice 
under section 77 of the Building Act 1984 in April 2016.  An additional supporting statement 
and a heritage statement have been submitted for this element of the proposal as the 
opening was widened at the time the dangerous wall was being rectified, which constituted 
demolition in a conservation area.  The wall is positioned opposite the Old Parsonage which 
is situated on Sun Street. The character of the site is historic in nature with a narrow road 
serving Sun Street and Hollowgate Road adjacent to the site.  

3. Relevant History 

3.1 1988/0966 7 Sun Street, Askam-in-Furness - Single storey kitchen extension to side and 
rear elevations, alterations and refurbishment to include new dormer and chimney stack 
Approved 15/12/1988 

Page 42 of 50

Page 102

Agenda Item 8



 
 
3.2 57/2003/0968 3-5 Sun Street, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness - Erection of a rear ground floor 
extension providing conservatory, utility room, shower room and bedroom Appcond 
24/11/2003 
 
3.3 BPA6/2016/0141 Adjacent to Old Parsonage, Sun Street, Ireleth, Askam-in-Furness - 
Application for removal of sycamore tree (T1) situated within a Conservation Area. 
Approved 24/03/2016. 

4. Officer Assessment 

National Legislation and Policy 

4.1 Under the Town and Country Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation areas) Act 
1990 section 72, the local Authority has a duty to consider the impact on the conservation 
area as part of exercising its planning functions. 

4.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) under paragraph 11 has a presumption 
in favour of sustainable development. Paragraph 192 places importance on preserving and 
enhancing the conservation area.   

Local Plan Policies 

4.3 Policy HE4 follows through from national policy and also requires development to 
preserve or enhance the conservation area. 

Impact on the protected tree 

4.4 This application has been submitted with a pre-development arboricultural report which 
considers the impact of the proposal on the tree subject to the Tree Preservation Order 
adjacent to the area of development.  It advises that, subject to the correct construction 
method, it is possible to create the parking area proposed whist having minimal impact on 
the protected tree.  Supporting information showing a no dig construction method has been 
supplied.  This involves installation of panels forming a mesh system in-filled with stone to 
prevent compacting of soil around the root protection area as recommended by the 
arboricultural report. A condition is also recommended to ensure that the work is carried out 
in accordance with the arborical report. 

Impact on the conservation area 

4.5 In terms of the impact on the conservation area, there should be a neutral impact from 
the proposal.  The materials to be used in the parking surface are sensitive to the protected 
tree and the modification to the wall re-uses the existing wall material and has minimal 
visual impact.  The area is characterised by parked vehicles and this area should not 
appear materially different to the existing situation.  The loss of a modest section of walling 
is not considered to have an adverse impact on the conservation area  or to conflict with the 
requirements of the Act, specifically the general duty under Section 72. 

Page 43 of 50

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Biodiversity and ecological issues 

4.6 An ecological report was also provided for the proposed parking area which concluded 
that there are no features of ecological interest or concern which could potentially affect, or 
be affected by the proposed works. Opportunities for bio-diversity enhancement are limited 
on the site and are also constrained by the need to protect the tree root system however 
some gain will result from the provision of a bird box and a condition is recommended. 

Highway issues 

4.7 Like most historic villages car parking provision is limited on the narrow surrounding 
streets. Whilst two off-street car parking spaces will be provided it is likely that one on-street 
will be lost. Representations have been received concerning the impact on existing on-
street parking in the locality from the formation of this parking area. However, the Highway 
Authority have been consulted and have responded raising no objection to the proposal and 
advised that the "proposal will not have a material affect on existing highway conditions". 

Design issues 

4.8 Your officers have worked with the applicant to give pre-application advice on the site 
constraints and the design is considered to be sensitive in terms of floorscape materials. 
Additionally, whilst the walling modifications are retrospective, the existing materials have 
been re-used including coping stones and gate piers and this retains the vernacular 
appearance of this part of the conservation area and results in very modest change. 

Other 

4.9 As the modification to the wall in the conservation area was only identified recently, the 
Authority are required to carry out due consultation which involves re-advertising the 
development.  This expires on 27.6.19.   

5. Conclusions 

5.1 The proposal is modest in scale and the impact on the conservation area is considered 
to be neutral.  There should be minimal impact on the protected tree providing the parking 
area is constructed in accordance with the method provided which can be conditioned 
accordingly. My recommendation is based upon the fact that the public notices expire 
between this and the next committee meeting. Delegating to the Planning Manager will 
ensure no further delay in issuing the decision thus maintaining our performance figures. 

6. Recommendation 
  
I recommend that, subject to no new material planning objections being raised during the 
unexpired consultation period ( in which case the matter shall go before the next Panel), the 
decision be delegated to the Development Services (Planning) Manager to grant Planning 
Permission subject to the Standard Duration Limit and the following conditions :- 

Page 44 of 50

Page 104

Agenda Item 8



 

Compliance with Approved Plans 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the application dated as valid on 19/03/2019 and the hereby approved documents defined 
by this permission as listed below, except where varied by a condition attached to this 
consent: 
 
DT/001, 002, 003, 004, 005, 006, 007, 008, 009 

Reason 
 
To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the drawings approved 
by the Planning Authority. 
 
During Building Works 
 
3. All work to be carried out must be completed in strict accordance with the following 
documents and there recommendations: 

'Pre-development Arboricultural Report' prepared by Treescapes Consultancy Ltd. dated 
18.1.2019, 

Method Statement Non Dig Method received by the Authority on 19.3.19 (DT/009) 

Reason 
 
In order to ensure that the works do not impact on the protected tree. 

4.  Tree protection fencing surrounding the 'Construction Exclusion Zone' (CEZ) as shown 
on plan DT/004 'Tree protection plan showing the proposed site layout' as detailed in 
appendix 7 of the arboricultural report detailed above shall be erected and maintained 
throughout the building works. 

Reason 

In order to protect the tree subject of the Tree Preservation Order. 

5.  No materials shall be stored on the application site. 

Reason 

The whole of the site is within the root protection area of the Protected Tree.  Any storage 
of materials can impact on the tree and its health and vitality. 

 

Page 45 of 50

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



 

Before Occupation 

6. Prior to the beneficial use of the site for the development hereby approved a bird box 
shall be erected on the site. The bird box should be erected out of reach of predators, at a 
height of 1.5 to 5 metres and directed to avoid direct sunlight, heavy rain and prevailing 
winds. The box shall be installed and maintained in perpetuity. 

Reason 

In the interests of bio-diversity enhancement as required by Chapter 15 of the NPPF. 

Operational Conditions 
 
7. Vehicles must only be parked on the area shown for car parking on the drawings hereby 
approved (reference:  DT/001, DT/002, DT/003, DT/004, DT/005) 
 
Reason 
 
In order to protect the adjacent tree subject to a Tree Preservation Order and minimise any 
visual impact on the conservation area. 
 
Informative 

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building 
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning 
Officer before any such works are carried out. 
 

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please 
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to 
how to proceed.   

  

 

  

  

Page 46 of 50

Page 106

Agenda Item 8



Page 47 of 50

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



Page 48 of 50

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 8



Page 49 of 50

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 8



Page 50 of 50

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 8



National Policies 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-008 

Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has three overarching 
objectives, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways 
(so that opportunities can be taken to secure net gains across each of the different 
objectives): 

a) an economic objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by 
ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right places and at the right 
time to support growth, innovation and improved productivity; and by identifying and 
coordinating the provision of infrastructure; 

b) a social objective – to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that 
a sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the needs of present and 
future generations; and by fostering a well-designed and safe built environment, with 
accessible services and open spaces that reflect current and future needs and support 
communities’ health, social and cultural well-being; and 

c) an environmental objective – to contribute to protecting and enhancing our natural, built 
and historic environment; including making effective use of land, helping to improve 
biodiversity, using natural resources prudently, minimising waste and pollution, and 
mitigating and adapting to climate change, including moving to a low carbon economy. 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Policy NPPF-011 

Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

For plan-making this means that: 

a) plans should positively seek opportunities to meet the development needs of their area, 
and be sufficiently flexible to adapt to rapid change; 

b) strategic policies should, as a minimum, provide for objectively assessed needs for 
housing and other uses, as well as any needs that cannot be met within neighbouring areas 
(As established through statements of common ground (see paragraph 27), unless: 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a strong reason for restricting the overall scale, type or distribution of 
development in the plan area (The policies referred to are those in this Framework (rather 
than those in development plans) relating to: habitats sites (and those sites listed in 
paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of Special Scientific 

Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or defined as Heritage 
Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other heritage assets of 
archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of flooding or coastal 
change); or 

Page 111

Agenda Item 8



ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

For decision-taking this means: 

c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay; or 

d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most 
important for determining the application are out-of-date (This includes, for applications 
involving the provision of housing, situations where the local planning authority cannot 
demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, as 
set out in paragraph 73); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the delivery of 
housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirement over the 
previous three years. Transitional arrangements for the Housing Delivery Test are set out in 
Annex 1), granting permission unless: 

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed (The policies 
referred to are those in this Framework (rather than those in development plans) relating to: 
habitats sites (and those sites listed in paragraph 176) and/or designated as Sites of 
Special Scientific Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty, a National Park (or within the Broads Authority) or defined as 
Heritage Coast; irreplaceable habitats; designated heritage assets (and other heritage 
assets of archaeological interest referred to in footnote 63); and areas at risk of flooding or 
coastal change); or 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-083 

Planning policies and decisions should enable: 

a) the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business in rural areas, both 
through conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings; 

b) the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural 
businesses; 

c) sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments which respect the character of the 
countryside; and 

d) the retention and development of accessible local services and community facilities, such 
as local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public 
houses and places of worship. 

 
 
 

Page 112

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-085 

Planning policies and decisions should support the role that town centres play at the heart 
of local communities, by taking a positive approach to their growth, management and 
adaptation. Planning policies should: 

a) define a network and hierarchy of town centres and promote their long-term vitality and 
viability – by allowing them to grow and diversify in a way that can respond to rapid 
changes in the retail and leisure industries, allows a suitable mix of uses (including housing) 
and reflects their distinctive characters; 

b) define the extent of town centres and primary shopping areas, and make clear the range 
of uses permitted in such locations, as part of a positive strategy for the future of each 
centre; 

c) retain and enhance existing markets and, where appropriate, re-introduce or create new 
ones; 

d) allocate a range of suitable sites in town centres to meet the scale and type of 
development likely to be needed, looking at least ten years ahead. Meeting anticipated 
needs for retail, leisure, office and other main town centre uses over this period should not 
be compromised by limited site availability, so town centre boundaries should be kept under 
review where necessary; 

e) where suitable and viable town centre sites are not available for main town centre uses, 
allocate appropriate edge of centre sites that are well connected to the town centre. If 
sufficient edge of centre sites cannot be identified, policies should explain how identified 
needs can be met in other accessible locations that are well connected to the town centre; 
and 

f) recognise that residential development often plays an important role in ensuring the 
vitality of centres and encourage residential development on appropriate sites. 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 – Policy NPPF-155 

Inappropriate development in areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by directing 
development away from areas at highest risk (whether existing or future). Where 
development is necessary in such areas, the development should be made safe for its 
lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere. 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-170 

Planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 
environment by: 

Page 113

Agenda Item 8



a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value and 
soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the 
development plan); 

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider benefits 
from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and other benefits of 
the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland; 

c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access to it 
where appropriate; 

d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing 
coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures; 

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable 
risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise 
pollution or land instability. Development should, wherever possible, help to improve local 
environmental conditions such as air and water quality, taking into account relevant 
information such as river basin management plans; and 

f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable 
land, where appropriate. 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 - Policy NPPF-192 

In determining applications, local planning authorities should take account of: 

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and 
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable 
communities including their economic vitality; and 

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness. 

 

 

Page 114

Agenda Item 8



 
 
Policy DS1: Council’s commitment to Sustainable Development  
 
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to 
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants 
to find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments 
to be approved wherever possible.  
 
The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by 
taking an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural 
and historic environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities 
and a wider choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan’s Vision and 
Objectives to be met and to secure development that simultaneously achieves 
economic, social and environmental gains for the Borough.  
 
Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved 
without delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of 
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether: 
 
a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the 
National Planning Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it) taken as a 
whole; or 
b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) 
indicate that development should be restricted. 
 
Policy DS2: Sustainable Development Criteria 
 
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development 
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, where possible 
all proposals should meet all of the following criteria taking into account the scale of 
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by:  
a)  Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure 
designed and integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public 
transport for main travel purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, 
leisure and education facilities; 
b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion 
at  junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-
capacity; 
c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and 
ensuring that proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or 
planned utilities infrastructure;  
d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, 
dust, light, vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the 
proposed development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels; 
 

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, 
particularly privacy, security and natural light; 
 
f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed 
 development; 
 
g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic 
interest of related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, 
trees and other environmental assets; 
 
h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity; 
 
iEnsuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if 
 possible; 
 
j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production; 
 
k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in 
 accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable 
drainage systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of 
flood risk; 
 
l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the 
historic environment including heritage assets and their settings; and 
 
m) Development must comply with Policy DS3. 
 
Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, 
they must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of 
the Local Plan objectives by alternative means. 
 
Policy DS5: Design 
 
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of 
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning 
applications must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the 
characteristics of the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into 
account the Council’s Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate 
clearly how they: Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the 
character of the adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant 
Supplementary Planning Documents; 
 
Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their 
setting; 
 
Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon 
it; 
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

Page 116

Agenda Item 8



Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces 
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating 
environment; 
 
Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas, 
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the 
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed; 
Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well-
structured building layout; 
 
Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular 
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character;  
 
Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, 
locally sourced wherever possible; 
 
Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating 
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees, 
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists, 
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place; 
 
Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community 
cohesion and public safety; 
 
Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can 
contribute to design objectives; 
 
Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and 
people with disabilities; 
 
Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale; 
 
Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and           
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the 
orientation of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and 
Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through 
the provision of appropriate roof pitches. 
 
Policy HE1 - Heritage Assets and their setting Barrow Borough Local Plan 
2016-2031 
 
The Council will, through planning decisions and in fulfilling its wider functions, 
proactively manage and work with partners to protect and enhance the character, 
appearance, archaeological and historic value and significance of the Borough’s 
designated and undesignated heritage assets and their setting. 
 
Opportunities will also be pursued, to aid the promotion, understanding and 
interpretation of both heritage and cultural assets, as a means of maximising wider 
public benefits and in reinforcing Barrow’s distinct identity. 
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 

Page 117

Agenda Item 8



Key elements which contribute to the Borough’s identity, and which will therefore be 
a priority for safeguarding and enhancing into the future, include: 
 
1. The Furness Abbey Scheduled Ancient Monument and its setting; 
 
2. 14th Century castles such Piel Castle and Dalton Castle and key religious sites 
and their setting; 
 
3. Barrow Town Hall, Ramsden Square and Schneider Square and associated 
statues as well as the streets and spaces which interconnect and provide setting for 
these assets; 
 
4. Wide, Victorian, tree-lined routes into and around Barrow such as Abbey Road 
and Hartington Street and the grid-iron pattern of areas of terraced housing in and 
around Barrow town centre; 
 
5. Remnants of the Borough’s industrial heritage including sandstone workshop 
buildings, the imposing former worker’s tenement blocks on Barrow Island, the slag 
bank,  former iron workings and neighbourhoods of older traditional housing. 
 
6. Coastal features including Jubilee Bridge, Roa Island jetty, pill boxes, Walney and 
Rampside lighthouses and Cavendish Dock; 
 
7. Barrow Park, including the cenotaph and bandstand; 
 
8. Conservation areas and Listed Buildings across the Borough; 
 
9. Key cultural assets encompassing parklands, woodland, landscapes, coastlines, 
museums, libraries, art galleries, public art, local food and drink and local customs 
and traditions. 
 
As well as fulfilling its statutory obligations, the Council will: 
 
a) Seek to identify, protect and enhance local heritage assets; 
 
b) Promote heritage-led regeneration including in relation to development 
opportunities; 
 
c) Produce conservation area appraisals and management plans; 
 
d) Develop a positive strategy to safeguard the future of any heritage assets that are 
considered to be “at risk”;  
 
e) Adopt a proactive approach to utilising development opportunities to increase the 
promotion and interpretation of the Borough’s rich archaeological wealth; and 
 
f) Develop a positive heritage strategy across the Borough. 
 
 
 

Page 118

Agenda Item 8



Policy HE4 - Conservation Areas Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 
 
Development within or affecting the setting of Conservation Areas will only be 
permitted where it preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the Area. 
Proposals for all new development, including alterations and extensions to buildings 
and their re-use, must be sensitive and appropriate to the character of the area. Any 
replacement feature should match the original where it makes a positive contribution 
to the Conservation Area and its setting. 
 
Proposals must be supported by any relevant Conservation Area Appraisal or 
Management Plan.  In particular it should respect all of the following: 
 
a) The character of existing architecture and any historical associations by having 
due regard to positioning and grouping of buildings, form, scale, enclosure, detailing 
and use of traditional materials; 
 
b) Existing hard and soft landscape features including open space, trees, walls and 
surfacing; 
 
c) Traditional plot boundaries and frontage widths; and 
 
d) Significant views into or out of the Areas. 
 
Proposals should also avoid the loss of public and private open space which makes 
a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation Area 
and its setting. 
 
Through Conservation Area Appraisals the Council will identify any opportunities for 
new development to enhance or better reveal their significance. 
 
Policy HC8 - New outdoor sports facilities Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-
2031 
 
Proposals for the provision of outdoor sports facilities and associated buildings and 
infrastructure will be supported provided that: 
 
a) The development will not result in visual harm to the character and appearance of 
the surroundings, countryside or coastal area; 
 
b) The development will not result in the loss of best and most versatile agricultural 
land; 
 
c) The development would not harm any site of identified nature conservation 
interest; 
 
d) Adequate on site parking is provided, or there is adequate on street parking in the 
immediate area without causing congestion or loss of amenity; 
 
e) Its use does not cause a significant loss of residential amenity; 
 

Page 119

Agenda Item 8



f) The type, size and location of the new facility is informed by an up to date and 
robust assessment of need; 
 
g) Any floodlighting situated in the built-up areas is subject to a sports lighting 
assessment which demonstrates that residential amenities, highway safety and 
recognised ecological interests would not be adversely affected. 
 
Consideration should be given to the reuse of existing buildings where possible. 
 
Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity Barrow Borough Local 
Plan 2016-2031 
 
The Council will support development which maintains, protects and enhances 
biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for new development should minimise 
impacts on biodiversity and provide net gains in biodiversity where possible. 
Proposals will be expected to improve access to important biodiversity areas, and 
will be required to show full details of measures to achieve this in the form of a 
suitable Management Plan. Consideration must be given to the Council’s Biodiversity 
and Development Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and any other relevant 
guidance. 
 
Designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites 
 
There is a presumption in favour of the preservation and enhancement of sites of 
international and national importance. Development proposals that would cause a 
direct or indirect adverse effect on any site of international or national importance, 
including its qualifying habitats and species will only be permitted where the Council 
and relevant partner organisations are satisfied that: 
 

• The adverse effect cannot be avoided (for example through locating the 
development on an alternative site); and 
 

• Any adverse impacts can be mitigated for example through appropriate  habitat 
creation, restoration or enhancement on site or in another appropriate location, in 
agreement with the Council and relevant partner organisations, via planning 
conditions, agreements or obligations. 
 
Where mitigation is not possible or viable or where there would still be significant 
residual harm following mitigation, compensation measures should be made to 
provide an area of equivalent or greater biodiversity value. Compensation should be 
secured through planning conditions or planning obligations. 
 
Special compensation considerations apply in the case of Natura 2000 sites. If harm 
to such sites is allowed because the development meets the above criteria and 
imperative reasons of overriding public interest have been demonstrated, the 
European Habitats and Wild Birds Directive requires that all necessary 
compensatory measures are taken to ensure the overall coherence of the network of 
European Sites as a whole is protected. 
 

Page 120

Agenda Item 8



Local wildlife sites and geological designations such as County wildlife sites, wildlife 
corridors and Local Geological Sites (LGS) will be afforded a high degree of 
protection from potentially harmful development, unless a strong socio-economic 
need can be demonstrated and the development cannot be situated in a less 
sensitive location. 
 
Assessing the effects of development on biodiversity and geodiversity  
 
Proposals for new development which may result in significant harm to biodiversity 
must be accompanied by appropriate surveys, undertaken by a suitably qualified 
person, to identify the potential effects of development. In such cases, the mitigation 
hierarchy, as referenced in the Council’s Biodiversity and Development SPD should 
be applied and it must be demonstrated that avoidance measures have been 
considered and justification for ruling these out must be given. Where significant 
harm is avoidable, it should be adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, 
compensated for. 
 
Where mitigation is required in the form of species translocation, the Council will 
work with partners to identify suitable sites for translocation. 
 
Where there is evidence to suspect the presence of protected species, the planning 
application should be accompanied by appropriate, up-to-date surveys carried out at 
the correct time of year for the particular species assessing their presence to ensure 
that the proposal is sympathetic to the ecological interests of the site. 
 
Policy R6 - Non-Retail Uses in Dalton Town Centre Barrow Borough Local Plan 
2016-2031 
 
Proposals for other main town centre uses (i.e. not A1) will be supported within 
Dalton town centre, provided: 
 
a) The proposal complements the retail function and makes a positive contribution to 
the vitality, viability and diversity of the town centre in terms of maintaining active 
continuous retail frontages, signage and hours of opening; 
 
b) The proposal would not give rise, either alone or cumulatively, to a detrimental 
effect on the character and amenity of the town centre; and 
 
c) The proposal would not harm the amenities of town centre residents. 
 
  
 
 
  
 
 

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

18th June 2019 
 

INDEX 
 
 
 
 

Page Reference  Address Proposal  

2 2019/0338 Earnse Bay Car Park 
West Shore Road 
Barrow-in-Furness 

Proposed portacabin for use as a kite surfing 
teaching classroom and store. 

14 2019/0187 66 Market Street, 
Dalton-in-Furness  

Change of use from Estate Agents (Use Class A2) 
to a Beauty and Tanning Salon (Use Class Sui-
Generis), including existing rear extension 
demolished and widened and new signage to front 
elevation 

31 2019/0259 93 Market Street,  
Dalton-in-Furness  

Change of use from shop (Use Class A1) to office 
accommodation (Use Class B1) 

40 2019/0080 11 Sun Street, Ireleth, 
Askam-in-Furness  

Construct two parking spaces in the residential 
garden area. Partial demolition of wall in 
conservation area (Retrospective). 

 

Page 122

Agenda Item 8



  Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 18th June, 2019

Reporting Officer:    Development Services Manager 
(Planning & Enforcement)

(D)

Title: Receipt of Appeal Decision – Home Farm, North Scale, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

Summary and Conclusions: 

Planning permission was refused for a change of use of agricultural land to 
domestic garden, the erection of a summer-house and a boundary wall and 
fence on land adjoining a dwelling located in open countryside near to the 
Borough dog kennels.  The appeal was dismissed as the Inspector considered 
introducing a domestic formality into the countryside location was unacceptable. 
Also it was not possible to conclude the development was not at increased risk 
from flooding, in part because no flood risk assessment had been carried out.  
The Appeal Decision is attached at Appendix 1.

Recommendations: 

That Members note the report.

Report

The application consisted of three elements; a change of use of agricultural 
land within the applicants ownership, the erection of a summerhouse on an 
existing building base and a boundary wall and fence along the road facing 
boundary.  The dwelling sits in a rural, countryside location, designated as a 
green wedge.  It has a reasonably sized domestic garden, but also has 
agricultural land lying to the west, a remnant of the former farming use.  
Permission was refused as it was considered the development as a whole 
would be harmful to the landscape character of the area due to the 
suburbanising effect.

The Inspector considered that if permission were to be granted for the change 
of use, and despite the fact the land was already regularly mown, it would be 
reasonable to expect that a more intensive residential use would ensue with 
ornamental plantings, domestic paraphernalia and garden buildings and 
structures.  This would add further to the incongruity of the use against the 
surrounding open undeveloped land.  The summerhouse and fence were 
considered to have a suburban appearance which was not reflective of the 
appearance of the house or largely rural character of the area.  

Page 123

Agenda Item 9



Given the harm to the character of the local landscape and the suburbanising 
appearance it would introduce to the area, contrary to (then) Development Plan 
Policies D4 and D21of the Local Plan Review (1996-2006).  Flood risk was also 
considered; due to the increase in vulnerability level of the land use, and that no 
assessment had been submitted to assess that risk the appeal was dismissed 
for the both reasons as per the original refusal.  

Background Papers

Nil.

Page 124

Agenda Item 9



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 23 April 2019 

by Felicity Thompson  BA(Hons) MCD MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 17th May 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/W0910/W/19/3219727 

Home Farm, North Scale, Walney, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 3RW 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr Alan Pattinson against the decision of Barrow-in-Furness 

Borough Council. 
• The application Ref B20/2018/0582, dated 31 July 2018, was refused by notice dated 

15 October 2018. 
• The development proposed is 1) Change of use of land within boundary from 

agricultural to domestic garden 2) The erection of a summerhouse on the existing 
building base 3) A wall and fence along the road facing boundary. 

 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Procedural Matter 

2. As part of the appeal submission the appellant has sought to make revisions to 

the scheme including the removal of the summerhouse and the reduction in the 

area of land which it is proposed to use as garden. The ‘Procedural Guide – 

Planning Appeals – England’ advises that the appeal process should not be 
used to evolve a scheme and it is important that what is considered by the 

Inspector is essentially what was considered by the local planning authority, 

and on which interested people’s views were sought.  

3. The revisions suggested by the appellant materially alter the nature of the 

proposal and were I to accept them this could lead to possible prejudice to 
interested parties who have not had the opportunity to comment on the revised 

proposal. In the interests of fairness, I have determined the appeal on the 

basis of the plans on which the Council made their decision, with the exception 
of the correction to the measurements for the proposed wall as this is a minor 

correction which does not materially alter the proposal. 

Main Issues 

4. The main issues are the effect of the proposed development on (i) the 

character and appearance of the area and (ii) flood risk. 

 

 

Page 125

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/19/3219727 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

Reasons 

Character and appearance 

5. Home Farm is a relatively large detached house which stands alone and is 
located off a no through road. Taking account of the generally spacious 

arrangement and the prevailing sense of openness around and beyond the 

house, the road has a distinctly rural character and feel.  

6. It is not clear from the submitted plans where the existing garden is in relation 

to the house however, on the basis of the Councils report I understand that it 
consists of an area of around 1000m2 to the east and north of the house. The 

appeal site surrounds the house broadly to the north and west and abuts an 

area of land broadly to the east which is used for the keeping of horses and to 

the west and north is open countryside.  

7. Policy D21 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan Review 1996-2006 (the Local 
Plan) states that development proposals in the countryside shall respect the 

diversity and distinctiveness of local landscape character. Policy D4 of the Local 

Plan states that development within Green Wedges that would detract from 

their value as a setting for recreation, providing important visual relief and 
contrast between residential areas will not be permitted. 

8. The proposed use would introduce a domestic formality into this countryside 

location. Whilst there is currently no hard boundary between the agricultural 

land and existing house and garden, and the land is currently mown, it seems 

to me that if permission were given for the change of use it would be 
reasonable to expect that a more intensive residential use would ensue with 

ornamental plantings, domestic paraphernalia, garden buildings and structures. 

This would add further to the incongruity of the use against the appearance of 
the surrounding open undeveloped land and neighbouring equestrian use.  

9. The proposal also includes the erection of a summerhouse on an existing 

building base however, no plan has been provided to show where the existing 

building base is located, albeit the Council states that it is on the western side 

of the land.  

10. The proposed form and design of the summerhouse would give it a suburban 

appearance not reflective of the appearance of the house or the largely rural 
character of this part of the road. Furthermore, given the open nature of the 

appeal site because of its size and massing it would be dominant when viewed 

from the road. 

11. The proposed boundary treatment to the front of the site consists of a cobbled 

wall with timber hit and miss fencing above, and a timber gate with an overall 
height of around 1.8m. Whilst cobble walls appear to be a feature of the area, 

the addition of hit and miss fencing would give the boundary a suburban 

appearance, which together with its proposed height, length and prominence 
would form a large, obtrusive and incongruous feature at odds with the 

prevailing rural character.  

12. Overall, for the reasons set out above the proposed development would cause 

unacceptable harm to the character of the local landscape contrary to Policies 

D21 and D4 of the Local Plan. 

Page 126

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/19/3219727 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

13. The Council referred to Policy B13 of the Local Plan however, this relates to 

residential development and is not relevant to the proposed development and 

as such weighs neither for nor against it. 

14. The Council also referred to emerging Policies G12, H4 and DS5 of the 

Submission Draft Local Plan (December 2017) (SDLP) however, no information 
has been provided about what stage this plan has reached or the extent of any 

outstanding objections to the policies. As such and since the SDLP does not 

form part of the development plan I attach little weight to these policies. 

Flood risk 

15. The appeal site is located in Flood Zones 2 and 3 and a Flood Risk Assessment 

(FRA) is required. The Planning Practice Guidance advises that the information 

in a FRA should be credible, fit for purpose, proportionate to the degree of flood 
risk and appropriate to the scale, nature and location of development.  

16. The appellant has submitted an Environment Agency form and a copy of an 

Environmental Risk Certificate. However, no assessment or explanation has 

been provided about how this demonstrates that the proposed development is 

safe from flooding and does not increase the number of people at risk of 
flooding. Given the absence of an FRA the proposed development is contrary to 

the National Planning Policy Framework which seeks to ensure that new 

development is made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk 
elsewhere.  

Other Matters 

17. The misgivings expressed by the appellant about the way the Council dealt with 

this application are separate from the planning merits of the proposed 
development and they have no bearing on the outcome of this appeal. 

Conclusion 

18. For the reasons set out above the appeal is dismissed. 

Felicity Thompson 

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 127

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


This page is intentionally left blank



   Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 18th June, 2019

Reporting Officer:    Development Services Manager 
(Planning & Enforcement)

(D)

Title: Receipt of Appeal Decision – Land between Wakefield 
Street and Sandpiper Close, Askam-in-Furness

Summary and Conclusions: 

Planning permission was refused for a part retrospective hardstanding for 
vehicular parking on an area of open land in Askam.  The small area constructed 
was for the applicant’s caravan.  The appeal was dismissed on the basis it would 
provide little benefit, and would result in visual clutter which would harm the 
character and appearance of the area.  The Appeal Decision is attached at 
Appendix 1.

Recommendations: 

That Members note the report.

Report

The application consisted of two elements, a retrospective hardstanding for 
stationing a caravan and a proposed extension of an existing car parking area at 
the head of the cul-de-sac.  The application site is within an area of open space 
which is defined as a green route in the now adopted Local Plan.

The Inspector considered the removal of vegetation and introducing a hard 
surface would, when compared to its current appearance, appear harsh and 
unsympathetic.  Even if additional screening/planting were introduced, it was 
considered the use for car parking would remain at odds with the function of the 
space as an amenity area.  It was also not evident that there was a demonstrable 
parking problem that would be resolved.

Given the harm to the character and appearance of the area, contrary to (then) 
Development Plan Policy D26 of the Local Plan Review (1996-2006), the appeal 
was dismissed.  The matter has been referred to Planning Enforcement to 
negotiate the reinstatement of the retrospective part, failing which formal action 
will be necessary.

Background Papers

Nil.

Page 129

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 23 April 2019 

by Felicity Thompson  BA(Hons) MCD MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 16th May 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/W0910/W/19/3220936 

between Wakefield and Sandpiper, Askam-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA16 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mrs Suzan Phillpotts against the decision of Barrow-in-Furness 

Borough Council. 
• The application Ref B20/2018/0500, dated 3 July 2018, was refused by notice dated 4 

September 2018. 
• The development proposed is additional parking between Wakefield Street and 

Sandpiper Close, Askam (cul-de-sac). 
 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed.  

Procedural Matter 

2. The appellant has formed a small area of hard surfacing which is in use for the 

storage of a caravan. I have therefore considered the appeal on the basis of 
the submitted plans and my site observations.  

Main Issue 

3. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of 
the area. 

Reasons 

4. The appeal site is located at the head of a residential cul-de-sac. The proposal 

would provide car parking for an additional seven cars and would adjoin an 
existing hard surfaced parking area. The car parking would be formed in an 

area of open green space which has a pleasant appearance and makes a 

positive contribution to the appearance of the area. 

5. The development would involve the removal of vegetation and the laying of a 

hard surface which would, when compared to its current appearance, appear 
harsh and unsympathetic. Moreover, the incursion of parked cars will add 

visual clutter into an undeveloped area. The appellant’s offer of a landscaping 

scheme to establish planting around the proposed car parking area would not 
overcome my concerns relating to the use of the space. Even with planting 

vehicles would be prominent and visible and fundamentally, the use for car 

parking would be at odds with the function of the space as an amenity area.  

Page 131

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/W0910/W/19/3220936 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

6. The appellant states that the additional parking would help to keep the streets 

clear, to the benefit of a number of residences and the Ambulance and Fire 

services however, there is no substantive evidence to demonstrate that the 
existing parking arrangements are unsatisfactory in terms of convenience and 

highway safety. As such I am not convinced that the proposal would result in 

any significant benefit from a highway safety perspective.  

7. It appears to me that the land could still be used as a cut through even if 

planning permission were to be granted, and there is no evidence to suggest 
that the manoeuvring of vehicles would cause harm to highway safety. 

However, these matters and the stated improvements to the condition of the 

land are neutral matters which cannot outweigh my earlier findings.  

8. Overall, for the reasons given above the proposal would cause harm to the 

character and appearance of the area contrary to Policy D26 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan Review 1996-2006, which states that open areas will be 

protected from development where they are important to the appearance and 

character of housing areas or are used as amenity areas by the public.  

9. The Council also referred to emerging Policies G15 and I6 of the Submission 

Draft Local Plan (December 2017) (SDLP) however, no information has been 

provided about what stage this plan has reached. As such and since the SDLP 
does not form part of the development plan I attach little weight to these 

policies. 

Conclusion 

10. For the reasons set out above the appeal is dismissed. 

Felicity Thompson 

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 132

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


  Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 18th June, 2019

Reporting Officer:    Development Services Manager 
(Planning & Enforcement)

(D)

Title: Larger Homes Extension Legislation Update

Summary and Conclusions: 

Introduced in May 2013, this temporary legislation sought to relax the 
Planning regime for domestic rear extensions, but was initially time limited for 
3 years, then extended again to May 2019.  The legislation has now been 
made permanent.

Recommendations: 

That Members note this information.

Report

In May 2013 the Government relaxed Planning legislation to allow Permitted 
Development (PD) for home extensions, increasing the size limits from 4m to 
8m in length (detached houses) and 3m to 6m for all other cases.  Other 
limitations were a 4m height limit, reducing to 3m if positioned within 2m of the 
boundary.

Such applications were still subject to a neighbour consultation process like 
other householder development, except that in the event of no neighbour 
objection, permission was granted automatically subject to a requirement that 
completion was to be no later than May 2019.

Objections are rare hence most applications are granted by default, but 
occasionally the Planning Panel has been consulted.

There is no fee paid to the Planning Authority, but the applications have to be 
checked by Officers for details, recorded on our back office system, neighbour 
letters sent, and the proposal placed on the public register.

The legislation was previously time limited and due to expire on 30 May 2019, 
but in a recent announcement it has now been made permanent by 
Government. 

Page 133

Agenda Item 11



Any such proposals will continue to be subject to the associated neighbour 
consultation scheme.  This requires that the relevant Local Planning Authority 
is informed of the proposed work via a prior approval application.  This type of 
application continues to attract no fee but the Authority is still required to 
process it within its general workload.

We dealt with 17 such applications in 2017, 18 in 2018, and 4 so far this year.

We will continue to deal with these applications as expediently as possible in 
order that they do not interrupt main work flows.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no minor or significant implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 134

Agenda Item 11



    Part One

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 18th June, 2019

Reporting Officer:    Development Services Manager 
(Planning & Enforcement)

(D)

Title: Planning Performance Figures

Summary and Conclusions: 

The current quarter shows a steep rise in applications but overall performance 
figures remain above Central Government targets. Full analysis is included at 
Appendix 1.

Recommendations: 

That the information be noted.

Report

Background (for New Members)

Successive Governments have sought to improve the speed of planning decision 
making.  The latest is based upon the Growth & Infrastructure Act 2013, which 
introduced Government targets for Local Authorities in determining planning 
applications.  The current targets are 60% of ‘major’ applications within their 13 week 
deadline, and 70% of ‘other’ applications within their 8 week deadline. 

Where an Authority persistently fails to meet either, or both, of these targets it can be 
‘Designated’.  This means that applicants can choose to submit applications direct to 
the Secretary of State, although this excludes householder developments.  
Effectively the Council loses the power to determine influential applications within its 
own administrative area.

The planning performance assessment period is a rolling 2 year system that has a 
12 month overlap, once an assessment period comes to an end the new period 
starts with the last 12 months of data from the previous one.

Each quarter, I report our current performance to Members with some explanation of 
the background to the figures. 

Page 135

Agenda Item 12



Overall

Current Performance Levels (Oct 17 – Mar 19)

Majors – 60% (0% level with target)
Others – 81.5% (11.5% above target)

Validation Data (Jan 19 – Mar 19)

Total Validated Applications – 142
Validated Applications with Issues – 106

Application Data (Oct 17 – Mar 19)

Total Applications – 776

Category A

Major & Other – 458 (Most frequent application type – Householder – 235 (51.31%)

Category B

Not Assessed – 318.  This accounts for nearly 40% of submissions.  These include 
applications such as the discharge of conditions, listed buildings, trees, & 
advertisements.

Extensions of Time 

100 (Most frequent application type – Householder – 37 (37%)
Applications over the extended timeframe – 2
(Correct as of 14/05/19)

Applications on Hand

178
(At 31/03/19)

Overview 

Most noticeable is a steep (63%) rise in applications between the previous and 
current quarters.  This has been principally within the householder sector and also in 
the category B range.  These are not measured for Government performance 
purposes, but whilst the majority are of a minor nature, they nevertheless eat up 
resources, especially where expert advice is needed.  We have previously 
recognised this aspect of the service by varying the Officer delegation process to 
minimise handling times for such applications. 

Page 136

Agenda Item 12



Major Schemes

This is an area where we need to prioritise in order to move the figure higher than 
just meeting the target.  A significant amount of Officer time is taken by two main 
subject areas.  The first is negotiating improvements to the quality of (most) housing 
schemes in order that they meet with local planning policies and Council Plan 
aspirations to vary the mix and raise the quality of the overall housing offer.  The 
second is in ensuring the provision of suitably detailed supporting information, such 
as methods of sustainable drainage or high quality landscaping, to offset objections 
from statutory consultees and reduce the likelihood of refusing consent.

One solution to these issues is to ensure that prospective applicants engage in our 
paid pre-app process, and we will continue to promote this.  Officers can then raise 
potential issues and how they can be overcome as well as suggesting what level of 
supporting information will be needed to avoid delays.  Participation is purely 
voluntary.

In addition most Major schemes include legal agreements which are also time 
hungry.  We will try to twin track the Heads of Terms with the application process, 
although realistically this will be restricted to occasions where applicants are 
confident of receiving planning consent.

Applications classed as ‘Other’

Following the temporary appointment of an additional DM Officer in October there 
has been a marked increase in the determination rate, which suggests that 
previously the section has been under-resourced.

Validation

This is an important part of the overall process as it is the first point of contact for 
applicants.  Most submissions will have at least one basic error, which may be a 
missed certificate or signature, but frequently we are seeing submissions with 
several inaccuracies being received from professional agents.

The “issues” figure is somewhat skewed by the current “no fee received” indicator.  
An increasing number of submissions are being made through the national Planning 
Portal.  When an application is submitted through the Portal there is an inevitable 
delay in the Portal forwarding on the fee to us.  We intend to vary the indicator to 
remove this anomaly, which is beyond our control, in order to get a more realistic 
figure.

(i) Legal Implications

The recommendation has no legal implications.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no minor or significant implications.

Page 137

Agenda Item 12



(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any of the 
protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of users of 
this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 138

Agenda Item 12



Planning Applications & Performance – Summary Sheet June 2019

Barrow Borough Council

Planning Applications & Performance – Summary Sheet

The information below contains the headline figures taken from the quarterly report.  The data that 
will be used in the March report covers the period October 2017 to March 2019; this covers the 
second quarter since the beginning of the new two year assessment period.

Assessment Period

The planning performance assessment period is a rolling 2 year system that has a 12 month overlap, 
once an assessment period comes to an end the new period starts with the last 12 months of data 
from the previous one.

Current Performance Levels (Oct 17 – Mar 19)

Majors – 60% (0% level with target)
Others – 81.5% (11.5% above target)

Validation Data (Jan 19 – Mar 19)

Total Validated Applications – 142
Validated Applications with Issues – 106

Application Data (Oct 17 – Mar 19)

Total Applications – 776
Major & Other – 458 (Most frequent application type – Householder – 235 (51.31%)
Not Assessed – 318

Extensions of Time – 100 (Most frequent application type – Householder – 37 (37%)
Applications over the extended timeframe – 2
(Correct as of 14/05/19)

Applications on Hand – 178
(At 31/03/19)

Development Services Manager (Planning) – Comments

Overall

Most noticeable is a steep (63%) rise in applications between the previous and current quarters. This 
has been principally within the householder sector and also in the various category B ranges. These 
are not measured for govt performance purposes, but nevertheless eat up resources. We have 
previously recognised this aspect of the service by varying the officer delegation process to minimise 
handling times for such applications.

Major Schemes

This is an area where we need to prioritise in order to move the figure higher than just meeting the 
target. Presently we are handling a lot of housing applications from a single developer (in various 
guises) who has a history of making poor quality submissions. Not only do these eat into validation 
time but consume significant amounts of officer time to negotiate better schemes. We are now 

Page 139

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



Planning Applications & Performance – Summary Sheet June 2019

Barrow Borough Council

dealing with this developer more robustly although he still has no appetite to engage in our paid pre-
app process.
In addition most Major schemes include legal agreements which are also time hungry. We will try to 
twin track the Heads of Terms with the application process where applicants are confident of 
receiving planning consent.

Other Applications

Following the temporary appointment of an additional DM officer in October there has been a 
marked increase in the determination rate, which suggests that previously the section has been 
under-resourced.

Validation

The “issues” figure is somewhat skewed by the current “no fee received” indicator. An increasing 
number of submissions are being made through the national Planning Portal. When an application is 
submitted through the Portal there is an inevitable delay in the Portal forwarding on the fee to us. 
We intend to vary this indicator to remove this anomaly which is beyond our control.

Page 140

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	8 Planning Applications (Booklet attached).
	2019/0338 Earnse Bay Carpark
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report
	Recommendation

	2019/0187 66 Market Street 
	Consultation responses 
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation

	2019/0259 93 Market Street 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation

	2019/0080 11 Sun Street 
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation

	Policy Appendix 

	9 Receipt of Appeal Decisions - Home Farm, North Scale, Barrow-in-Furness
	Appeal Decision Home Farm Nort Scale - Appendix

	10 Receipt of Appeal Decision - Land between Wakefield Street and Sandpiper Close, Askam-in-Furness
	Appeal Decision Wakefield Street & Sandpiper Close - Appendix

	11 Larger Homes Extension Legislation Update
	12 Planning Performance Figures
	Planning Perforamnce Figures - Appendix


